
 

Agenda - Y Pwyllgor Cydraddoldeb, Llywodraeth Leol a 

Chymunedau 
Lleoliad: 

Ystafell Bwyllgora 1 - Y Senedd 

Dyddiad: Dydd Mercher, 11 Rhagfyr 

2019 

Amser: 08.45

I gael rhagor o wybodaeth cysylltwch a: 

Naomi Stocks 

Clerc y Pwyllgor 

0300 200 6222  

SeneddCymunedau@cynulliad.cymru
------ 

Rhag-gyfarfod preifat  

(08.45-09.00) 

1 Cyflwyniad, ymddiheuriadau, dirprwyon a datgan buddiannau 

(09.00)   

2 Bil Llywodraeth Leol ac Etholiadau (Cymru): sesiwn dystiolaeth 2 

(09.00-09.45) (Tudalennau 1 - 6)  

John Bader, Cadeirydd, Panel Annibynnol Cymru ar Gydnabyddiaeth Ariannol 

Greg Owens, Is-gadeirydd, Panel Annibynnol Cymru ar Gydnabyddiaeth 

Ariannol 

3 Bil Llywodraeth Leol ac Etholiadau (Cymru): sesiwn dystiolaeth 3 

(09.45-10.45) (Tudalennau 7 - 16)  

Jess Blair, Cyfarwyddwr, Cymdeithas Diwygio Etholiadol Cymru 

Egwyl  

(10.45-10.55) 

4 Bil Llywodraeth Leol ac Etholiadau (Cymru): sesiwn dystiolaeth 4 

(10.55-11.40) (Tudalennau 17 - 22)  

Huw Rees, Cyfarwyddwr Archwilio Perfformiad, Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru  

Martin Peters, Pennaeth Cyfraith a Moeseg, Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru 

5 Local Government and Elections (Wales) Bill: evidence session 5 

(11.40-12.10)   

Sophie Howe, Comisiynydd Cenedlaethau'r Dyfodol Cymru 

------------------------Pecyn dogfennau cyhoeddus ------------------------



6 Papurau i'w nodi 

(12.10-12.15) (Tudalen 23)  

6.1 Gohebiaeth gan y Llywydd ynghylch amserlen y Bil Llywodraeth Leol ac 

Etholiadau (Cymru) – 4 Rhagfyr 2019 

 (Tudalennau 24 - 25)  

6.2 Gohebiaeth at y Gweinidog Tai a Llywodraeth Leol ynghylch y sesiwn graffu 

ddiweddar ar y Bil Llywodraeth Leol ac Etholiadau (Cymru) - 5 Rhagfyr 2019 

 (Tudalennau 26 - 27)  

6.3 Gohebiaeth gan y Gweinidog Tai a Llywodraeth Leol ynghylch yr 

ymgynghoriad ar newidiadau i drefniadau llywodraethu gweithredol mewn 

prif gynghorau – 5 Rhagfyr 2019 

 (Tudalennau 28 - 29)  

6.4 Gohebiaeth gan Grŵp Gweithredu Celestia ynghylch materion diogelwch tân 

yn natblygiad Celestia – 5 Rhagfyr 2019 

 (Tudalennau 30 - 31)  

6.5 Gohebiaeth gan y Dirprwy Weinidog Tai a Llywodraeth Leol ynghylch yr 

ymateb i adroddiad y Pwyllgor ar fudd-daliadau yng Nghymru – 5 Rhagfyr 

 (Tudalennau 32 - 40)  

6.6 Gohebiaeth gan Gomisiynydd Cenedlaethau’r Dyfodol ynghylch gwybodaeth 

ychwanegol yn dilyn y cyfarfod ar 7 Tachwedd – 6 Rhagfyr 2017 

 (Tudalennau 41 - 50)  

7 Cynnig o dan Reol Sefydlog 17.42(vi) i benderfynu gwahardd y 

cyhoedd o weddill y cyfarfod 

(12.15)   

8 Bil Llywodraeth Leol ac Etholiadau (Cymru): trafod y dystiolaeth 

(12.15-12.30)   



1 

Paper for the Equalities, Local Government and Communities Committee 

Local Government and Elections (Wales) Bill 

Introduction 

1.1. The Independent Remuneration Panel for Wales is pleased to have the 
opportunity to comment on the Bill. We have been requested to frame our 
evidence relating to Parts 4 and 7 of the Bill, however we also have 
observations in respect of Part 3 – Promoting access to Local Government. 

1.2. It has been our practice to visit each of the 22 principal councils soon after 
each election as part of evidence gathering to ensure that we are cognisant 
with the issues and matters that need to be examined and reflected in our 
Remuneration Framework. Following the elections in 2017 we met in 
excess of 450 elected members, all of the leaders, many members of 
council executives and the chief executives and senior officers. 

1.3. In subsequent years we meet with the 3 National Park Authorities and the 
3 Fire and Rescue authorities. 

1.4. We also have an ongoing Programme of contact with community and town 
councils mainly through county council liaison arrangements. 

1.5. As a result of this ongoing contact we have a comprehensive knowledge of 
the local government sector in Wales. 

Papur 1 - Panel Annibynnol Cymru ar Gydnabyddiaeth Ariannol 
Paper 1 - Independent Remuneration Panel for Wales

Tudalen y pecyn 1

Eitem 2



2 

Part 3 Promoting Access to Local Government 

2.1. It is widely recognised that diversity of membership in democratic 
representation at local level is still at an unacceptable level. We observed 
that the 2017 intake showed an encouraging increase in newly elected 
female members and younger people of both genders. However, this was 
not a universal trend and there remains a significant lacuna particularly in 
respect of ethnic minority and persons with disability. 

2.2. We have been encouraged by successive Ministers to play a part within our 
statutory remit in providing a framework that supports the potential for 
improving diversity. The elements that are within our statutory functions 
that contribute to this aim are: 

 Financial support

 The provision of the necessary support to enable members to function
efficiently and safely.

Remuneration 

2.3. Criticism about payments to elected representatives is all too frequent so 
we make it clear in our Reports that democracy is not cost free. 

2.4. Payments for councillors is not the only factor to support improving 
diversity but it is an important one. Many of the new intake in 2017 made 
it clear that while the payment regime was not the main factor in standing 
for election, they could not have done so if it was not available. We are 
aware that at current levels of payment many backbench members struggle 
financially. 

2.5. Financial restrictions on local authorities have impacted on the ability for 
the annual salary of a backbench member to keep pace. The Panel is bound 
by its statutory limitations to take account of the affordability of its 
determinations so in the earlier years of austerity the salaries of councillors 
lost ground against the original benchmark which aligned backbench 
members’ payments to 3/5th of average welsh earnings. More recently we 
have been able to make modest increases but the current basic salary of 
£13868 p.a. is more than £2000 lower than it would be against the original 
benchmark. Realistically, it is unlikely that the original basis will be 

Tudalen y pecyn 2



 
3 

reinstated. We continue to examine other methodology to reach an 
appropriate conclusion in each Annual Report. In reaching our annual 
determination on salaries we have to balance fairness to the 1254 
councillors and the affordability for the 22 principal councils  

 
Provision of appropriate support 
 
2.6. We have been and continue to be clear that members should not be out of 

pocket in carrying out their role and they should not be expected to use 
their salary to be able to operate efficiently. In the earlier years some 
councils required members to pay for computer/telephones etc. for council 
business. We have made it clear that this is inappropriate. 

 
2.7. Social media has had a profound effect on the function of a ward councillor. 

It has changed the perception of many of their constituents and an 
overwhelming majority of the members we met indicated that it had 
increased their workload and the demands and expectations of those that 
they represent. More sinister is the extent of the abuse and threats that 
are now apparent. We have been clear that it is crucial that councils provide 
necessary support to safeguard individual members subjected to threats of 
violence. One of the pleas that we heard many times was to remove the 
statutory requirement that individual members’ home addresses be 
published. We understand that this is change included in the Bill. 

 
2.8. Financial support for caring needs is an important factor in ensuring that 

individuals are not disenfranchised because they have care commitments 
or have personal care requirements. The then Welsh Assembly 
Government introduced a Care Allowance Scheme in 2003, and the 
responsibility for setting the policy in this respect was transferred to the 
Panel when it was established. Despite an obvious need from many 
members who have caring responsibilities the take up has been negligible. 
One of the reasons for this was the public criticism following the annual 
publication. Also there is anecdotal evidence of peer criticism. We have 
changed this financial support from an allowance to a reimbursement of 
costs so that there can be no suggestion that an individual could “make a 
profit”. We have also changed the arrangements for publication so that no 
individual is identified. Despite this the take up has not increased 
significantly. We still believe that this, as part of an overall package, is 
important in attracting candidates from more diverse backgrounds to stand 
for election in the future. Despite care costs being a receipted 

Tudalen y pecyn 3



 
4 

reimbursement the HMRC has determined that it is taxable income which 
means that some members claiming it could be out of pocket. 

 
Part 4 Local Authority Executives, Members, Officers and Committees 
 
3.1. We note the proposal to make the appointment of a chief executive 

mandatory for principal councils with specific statutory responsibilities. 
Our view, although not a matter within our remit, is that this is an 
appropriate direction. It will provide greater consistency between councils 
in establishing clarity of the role and duties of those occupying the post. 

 
3.2. Clause 61 proposes to amend Section 143A of the Local Government 

(Wales) Measure 2011 so that the term salary is replaced with 
remuneration.  This change will have implications for our role in 
considering proposals from councils to change the payment made to its 
chief executive. The Local Government (Democracy) Act 2013 amended the 
Measure in respect of the Panel’s remit. Section 143A was inserted which 
requires, in certain circumstances, the authority to consult the Panel and 
have regard to our recommendations.  

 
3.3. The current legislation also applies to the Head of Paid Service in the 3 Fire 

and Rescue Authorities (usually the Chief Fire Officer). The Bill will need to 
be clear whether the amendment at clause 61 excludes FRAs.  

 
3.4. We administer this element of our function taking account of Welsh 

Government Guidance which will need to be updated when the Bill is 
enacted. 

 
3.5. Clause 62 clarities the situation when Welsh Ministers give a direction to an 

authority that has disregarded the recommendation of the Panel under 
Section 143A. The Panel supports this as it has been an issue of controversy 
in the past. 

 
Appointment of Assistants to executive 
 
3.6. During our visits in 2017 several council leaders indicated that they would 

like to be able to appoint deputies or assistants to the members of their 
cabinets. They considered that it would provide development 
opportunities for individuals who could be future members of the 
executive as well as improving the functioning of the cabinet by providing 

Tudalen y pecyn 4



 
5 

support to busy portfolio holders. Potentially, it would have a positive 
improvement in the diversity of cabinets. Clause 63 will provide for such 
appointments but there are consequential issues for the Panel.  

 
3.7. Currently each principal council is allocated a maximum number of senior 

positions that can be paid. These maxima (or Caps) are set out in our Annual 
Report and vary according to which of 3 population groups the council is in. 
It is within our discretion to change the cap so in most cases if the assistants 
warrant additional remuneration this can be accommodated. However, 
there is an overriding statutory maximum number of members who can be 
paid for holding a senior post. This is 50% of the council’s total membership 
and can only be varied with the specific approval of Welsh Ministers. 2 
councils would definitely be affected – Isle of Anglesey and Merthyr Tydfil.   
Both would be unable to appoint paid Assistants unless they withdrew 
payments from some current senior salary holders. Rather than have 
individual requests to override the statutory maximum to Welsh Ministers 
it might be more appropriate for the statutory position to be delegated to 
the Panel. 

 
Job-sharing: executive leaders and executive members 
 
3.8. A number of leaders have raised the possibility of operating job-sharing for 

some of the cabinet portfolios which they believe would widen 
opportunities and improve the diversity within executives. The difficulty in 
implementing this to date is the current statutory maximum of 10 members 
of Executives. The proposals set out in clause 64 would resolve this and 
allow the Panel to construct appropriate remuneration arrangements to 
meet an individual council’s requirements. 

 
Family absence for members of local authorities 
    
3.9. Our Remuneration Framework includes entitlement to remuneration of a 

member eligible for family absence and mirrors the regulations currently in 
force. The Panel would amend the Framework to accord with changes to 
the regulations. 

 
3.10. The Committee are advised that our Framework also provides for 

arrangements for long term sickness of members. 
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 5



 
6 

Part 7 Mergers and Restructuring of Principal Areas 
 
Chapter 4: Remuneration arrangements for new principal councils 
 
 
4.1. Whether and when there will be a submission from two or more existing 

councils is impossible to predict, however it is important that appropriate 
legislation is in place to manage the process effectively. The process should 
include the arrangements for the remuneration of the shadow council and 
the new principal council. 

 
4.2. The proposals contained in this section of the Bill are broadly in line with 

the current remit of the Panel set by the Measure. The main addition is to 
extend the definition of “relevant authorities” to shadow councils. 

 
4.3. In the event of a proposal for a merger, the Panel would examine the 

proposal to establish whether the new council would fit within the Panel’s 
Remuneration Framework that was in place at that time or whether it 
would require bespoke arrangements applying exclusively to the new 
council. 

 
4.4. At this stage we have no concerns about the arrangements set out in clauses 

141 to 144. 
 
The Independent Remuneration Panel for Wales  
4th December 2019 

Tudalen y pecyn 6



Local Government and Elections (Wales) Bill 

Evidence to the Communities and Local Government 

Committee from ERS Cymru 

4th December 2019 

The Local Government and Elections (Wales) Bill is an extensive piece of legislation that 

includes some key areas of reform, specifically over elections. We are delighted to see the 

inclusion of moves to extend the franchise, changes to the electoral system and the ability 

for Returning Officers to automatically register voters however we believe it is vital that this 

legislation is strengthened in some key areas as it progresses through the Senedd. 

We have been keeping a close eye on the legislation as it has developed, including 

responding to the Welsh Government’s Consultation on Electoral Reform in Local 

Government in Wales in 2017.1 

There are some parts of the legislation on which we as an organisation hold no views. As 

such our response to the Bill is specific to those parts of the legislation on which we do have 

policy and views. 

Part 1- Elections 

The extension of the franchise 

A principal area of this legislation is to extend the franchise to 16 and 17 year olds and 

foreign nationals. The extension of the franchise to 16 and 17 year olds is something we 

have long campaigned for and we are very pleased to see its inclusion in this Bill. 

Given the recent passing of the Senedd and Elections (Wales) Bill, it’s vital that the franchise 

is as consistent as possible and it makes utter sense that the same people will be able to 

vote in both Senedd and local elections. The inclusion of the extension of the franchise in the 

Local Government and Elections (Wales) Bill also puts pressure on the next UK Government 

to ensure votes at 16 is enacted for UK General Elections, to ensure an entirely consistent 

1 https://www.electoral-reform.org.uk/latest-news-and-research/parliamentary-briefings/response-to-
the-welsh-governments-electoral-reform-in-wales-consultation/  

Papur 2 - Cymdeithas Diwygio Etholiadol Cymru 
Paper 2 - Electoral Reform Society Cymru

Tudalen y pecyn 7

Eitem 3

https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/consultations/2018-01/consultation_document-en_0.pdf
https://www.electoral-reform.org.uk/latest-news-and-research/parliamentary-briefings/response-to-the-welsh-governments-electoral-reform-in-wales-consultation/
https://www.electoral-reform.org.uk/latest-news-and-research/parliamentary-briefings/response-to-the-welsh-governments-electoral-reform-in-wales-consultation/


 

franchise across the UK, and that 16 and 17 year olds in England and Northern Ireland will 

have the same rights as young people in Scotland and Wales. 

There are a range of arguments over the extension of the vote to 16 and 17 year olds, from 

a rights-based perspective, where young people can be employed, pay taxes and get 

married to those that come from a perspective of citizen engagement. Our perspective is that 

16 and 17 year olds are far more likely to be in a school environment where they can receive 

effective political education and be able to register alongside others.  

 

Our most recent example of the extension of the vote was in Scotland, where turnout for 16 

and 17 year olds (75%) in the Scottish Referendum was actually higher than their 18-24 year 

old counterparts (54%). While they were still less likely to vote than those aged 35 and 

above,2 this kind of engagement from younger voters was clearly something to be 

celebrated. Indeed, 97% of 16 and 17 year olds who reported having voted in the 2014 

Scottish Referendum said that they would vote again in future elections and referendums.3 

 

Research undertaken by Dr Jan Eichhorn at the University of Edinburgh has also shown 

engagement has extended beyond the referendum. In a survey ahead of the 2015 General 

Election, a comparison of 16 and 17 year old Scots with their English, Northern Irish and 

Welsh counterparts showed that Scottish participants demonstrated  substantially higher 

levels of engagement with democracy even beyond voting, for example by signing petitions, 

and engaging with a greater range of information sources about politics.4 

 

This research demonstrates the possible positive effects of votes at 16, which the Welsh 

Government also point to in the Explanatory Memorandum that goes alongside the Bill. 

However, we must be very cautious about ensuring that in Wales this is done effectively with 

extensive political education alongside it. Welsh young people will not have the ‘event’ of the 

Scottish Referendum to drive them to the polling station, yet in terms of the next local 

elections in 2022 many young people will have already had the chance to vote in the Senedd 

elections in 2021.  

 

This necessitates a substantial effort to effectively engage young people ahead of both 

elections, and means there is a specific need for the Welsh Government to be actively 

involved in the plans for informing young people about the changes to the franchise ahead of 

the 2021 elections. 

 

We are pleased to see the inclusion of the duty to promote awareness and provide 

assistance contained in Part 1, Section 4 of the Bill. This duty applies to councils 

themselves, however we would argue that Ministers should also have this duty in terms of 

coordinating a central campaign that reaches all attainers and those newly enfranchised. 

 

We have recently been undertaking a project with the Senedd Commission, going into 

schools across Wales to ask young people what information they need to know ahead of the 

introduction of votes at 16 in 2021, and asking how best to deliver that information. From that 

 
2 http://blog.whatscotlandthinks.org/2014/12/many-16-17-year-olds-voted/  
3 https://www.electoralcommission.org.uk/sites/default/files/pdf_file/Scottish-independence-
referendum-report.pdf 
4 https://blogs.lse.ac.uk/politicsandpolicy/votes-at-16-new-evidence-from-scotland/  

Tudalen y pecyn 8

http://blog.whatscotlandthinks.org/2014/12/many-16-17-year-olds-voted/
https://www.electoralcommission.org.uk/sites/default/files/pdf_file/Scottish-independence-referendum-report.pdf
https://www.electoralcommission.org.uk/sites/default/files/pdf_file/Scottish-independence-referendum-report.pdf
https://blogs.lse.ac.uk/politicsandpolicy/votes-at-16-new-evidence-from-scotland/


 

research it’s clear that young people are ready and willing to engage, but that existing 

political education provision across Wales is not sufficient to give them the information they 

need. These findings highlight the need for a comprehensive pan-Wales programme of 

political education both within and outside of the curriculum. Currently there is a clear 

tension between the extension of the franchise for 2021 and 2022 and the timeline for the 

rollout of the curriculum in 2025. This requires specific resources to be developed for both 

the 2021 and 2022 elections. It makes sense that the Senedd Commission should take 

responsibility for the 2021 elections, but the Welsh Government will need to step up for local 

elections in 2022. As a result of this, and the need for the resources in 2022 to be based on 

what has and hasn’t worked in 2021, the Senedd Commission and Welsh Government need 

to be working together to develop a coordinated approach. 

 

Voting systems for local elections 

 

It is very welcome that legislation on electoral reform has now been introduced in Wales, 

which includes a move to a more proportional voting system. 

 

We have long seen the problems with the current First Past the Post (FPTP) system in local 

elections. Disproportionate results are common place under this system, something clear at 

the 2017 local elections where, in Cardiff, Labour received 39.5% of the vote but 53% of 

seats and in Conwy where Plaid Cymru received 8% of the vote and 17% of seats, while the 

Conservatives took 37% of the vote but just 27% of the seats. Ultimately, FPTP forces 

random results and ensures ‘safe’ seats are perpetually held by the same person, one of the 

major blockages to diversity. Furthermore in the last local elections 92 seats were 

uncontested. Scotland moved to the Single Transferable Vote system in 2007 and at the last 

election had just 3 uncontested seats. These uncontested wards were on the islands of 

Orkney and Shetland and on the Kintyre peninsula. This was the first time that any wards 

had been uncontested since the introduction of STV for Scottish local elections. 

 

Scotland’s experience of changing from FPTP to STV offers much to learn from. ERS 

research by Professor John Curtice following the 2012 local elections in Scotland found that 

that voter choice expanded, with the average number of candidates per ward increasing 

from 3.4 in 2003 to 7.1 in 2012 and uncontested seats had been reduced to 0 in the 2007 

and 2012 elections.5 The number of candidates increased slightly in the 2017 Scottish 

locals, with 2,572 candidates contesting seats in 354 multi-member wards, giving voters on 

average a choice of 7.3 candidates.6 However, the 2012 report cautioned that STV alone 

had not been able to make major progress on gender balance and could only do so when 

coupled with direct positive action. 

 

The permissive PR model contained in this legislation is not unprecedented; the system has 

been used in New Zealand since the passing of the Local Electoral Act 2001. This has 

meant since the local elections in 2004 local authorities have had the opportunity to choose 

between FPTP and STV.  

 
5 https://www.electoral-reform.org.uk/latest-news-and-research/publications/2012-scottish-local-
elections/ 
6 https://www.electoral-reform.org.uk/latest-news-and-research/publications/democracy-denied-the-
2019-election-audit/#sub-section-21 

Tudalen y pecyn 9

https://www.electoral-reform.org.uk/latest-news-and-research/publications/2012-scottish-local-elections/
https://www.electoral-reform.org.uk/latest-news-and-research/publications/2012-scottish-local-elections/
https://www.electoral-reform.org.uk/latest-news-and-research/publications/democracy-denied-the-2019-election-audit/#sub-section-21
https://www.electoral-reform.org.uk/latest-news-and-research/publications/democracy-denied-the-2019-election-audit/#sub-section-21


 

 

While it has been used before, permissive PR does not come without its risks but overall is a 

step forward in terms of legislating upon a new voting system for local elections in Wales.  

 

In terms of those risks, there are real communication challenges in terms of having a 

patchwork of electoral systems across one election. It is imperative that each local authority 

moving to the STV system puts in place an extensive communications strategy for the initial 

vote.  

 

STV is simple for voters - all they have to do is rank as many or as few candidates as they 

wish in order of preference. The main change that will need to be communicated to voters is 

that they need to decide on how they would like to rank the candidates on the ballot paper. 

There is also a need to brief parties and candidates separately about the different 

requirements and consequences of campaigning under STV. New Zealand’s Department of 

Internal Affairs has developed a webpage with some resources for local authorities on how 

to use STV, which may offer some insight into the kind of communications that would be 

required.7 

 

There are some aspects of campaigning which will be affected by STV and merit 

consideration by parties. 

First off, there is information gathering. On top of familiar campaigning issues (such as local 

issues and general pattern of support), parties will need to pay attention to the following 

considerations when deciding on their campaign strategy and, in particular, how many 

candidates to stand:  

● How many people are strong supporters of the party? 

● How many people might vote for one of the party’s candidates because of personal 

or other factors? 

● How is support for the party, and for individual candidates, distributed throughout the 

area? 

● Are supporters of other candidates and parties prepared to give your candidates 

transfers? If so, which candidate is most attractive to transfers? 

For example, a ward under FPTP where, say, Labour poll 50–55% or so and the rest of the 

vote is scattered between the other parties would be a very predictable Labour seat to which 

nobody would devote much attention. But if it were a four-member STV seat, Labour’s 

campaigning efforts might make the difference between winning two seats or three seats. 

The other parties would also find it worth campaigning, not only to try to deprive Labour of 

the third seat but also to come top in the race for the non-Labour seat or seats, and to 

persuade supporters of other parties to transfer their lower preferences in the right direction. 

In terms of the practicalities included in the Bill of how a council could move to a new 

system, it is absolutely right that councils should consult voters and their members of the 

proposed change.  

 

 
7 http://www.stv.govt.nz/STV/index.htm 

Tudalen y pecyn 10

http://www.stv.govt.nz/STV/index.htm


 

The required two thirds majority makes sense in terms of ensuring the change in voting 

system is most likely a cross party move, given it is very unlikely for one party to hold two 

thirds of seats (the exception to this is in Neath Port Talbot where Labour currently hold 39 

of the 64 seats). In terms of current support among councillors for STV, over the summer we 

contacted councillors in Wales and asked them to complete a survey on their views on 

proportional representation. There were 318 responses (25% of total councillors in Wales) 

with 45% in favour and 36.8% against. In an additional question, 42.8% of respondents 

wanted more information on the issue. 

 

It is also sensible to have a lengthy period of notice ahead of an election and for the 

requirement to have local authorities not be able to change back to their previous system for 

two full cycles. This ensures there is an appropriate length of time for electoral arrangements 

to be put in place and for an effective information campaign to be run around the change.  

In terms of the boundary arrangements recommended in the legislation, there is limited 

information in the Bill itself however we support the recommended district magnitude of 

around three to six representatives per ward. This is also consistent with the magnitude 

recommended by the Expert Panel on Assembly Electoral Reform when looking at how STV 

might work for Senedd Cymru elections.  

While we are pleased to see the inclusion of PR in this legislation, and think the particular 

restrictions around the introduction of it are sensible, there is no denying that our preferred 

option would be the full rollout of STV for all council elections at the same time. It is clear 

that the current system is not working effectively and it is likely that, by giving councils the 

option to do so, most authorities won’t do it. Indeed in New Zealand, where this model has 

been used for 15 years STV has failed to be widely adopted by local authorities with only 11 

out of the 67 opting to use the voting system in the 2019 elections. 

In their Explanatory Memorandum Welsh Government state “It is appropriate that the council 

should decide on its voting system, which best reflects the needs of their local people and 

communities”. We would argue that no community is best served by unfair and 

disproportionate results or uncontested seats.  

Realistically the only way to ensure proportional results across Wales and an effective 

education campaign around a change to the electoral system is for a comprehensive 

overhaul. It no longer makes sense for FPTP to be used for any election in Wales and we 

would welcome the Welsh Government introducing STV for all Welsh local elections. 

Electoral registration database and moves towards automatic registration 

Regulations in this legislation to develop a database of electoral registration information are 

to be very much welcomed. The move to a single electronic register is long overdue and 

something that will enable wider modernisation of the registration process. For example, this 

would facilitate easier identification of duplicates on the register and a process whereby 

potential voters could much more easily confirm if they are registered or not. It would also 

facilitate new models of voting, such as the ability for voters to be able to vote in a different 

polling station.  

In terms of the practicalities of making this happen obviously the safety of holding so much 

data electronically should be of utmost concern. Local Authorities and Welsh Government 

Tudalen y pecyn 11



 

should work with cyber security experts and seek advice from the Information Commissioner 

on how this is best delivered so as to comply with data privacy laws.  

The moves to develop a system of automated registration, whereby registration officers can 

notify potential voters of their impending addition to the register, will go a huge way to 

simplifying the registration process. According to the latest Accuracy and Completeness 

estimates from the Electoral Commission, the local government register in Wales was just 

81% complete and 89% accurate as of December 2018.8 The possibility for this to be 

combined with information from other government sources, such as the DVLA or passport 

office or council tax information, has the potential for this move to hugely increase the 

completeness of the register and ensure the groups less likely to be registered (the young, 

the private rented sector, BAME groups) can be directly targeted leading to a much more 

complete register. The Electoral Commission has recently assessed how information from 

different sources could be used to update the registers.9 

Election Pilot Schemes 

The inclusion of moves to allow Welsh Ministers to introduce pilot schemes for local 

elections are an exciting development. If used to their full potential, we could see a real 

move towards testing out ideas that may boost participation. At the last local elections we 

saw a turnout of just 41%. Would voting on different days (such as over the weekend) or in 

different places (such as supermarkets) improve this in the future? We just don’t know in 

Wales and ultimately piloting these methods is the best way to test them. 

Part 3 – Promoting Access to Local Government 

 

Public participation in local government 

 

We welcome the new duties on local authorities to encourage local people to participate in 

decision making. Methods such as participatory budgeting and citizens’ assemblies could be 

great tools to boost engagement by local authorities.  

 

As an organisation we have developed extensive research on the merits of deliberative 

democracy and better engagement, and are excited by the potential for councils to adopt 

such measures within these duties. In Scotland, ERS is part of the ‘Our Democracy’ coalition 

running a campaign called ‘Act As If You Own The Place’ where communities come together 

at events to redesign their local democracy so it works better for them.10 The ERS has also 

been involved in running Citizens’ Assemblies at the UK level11 - one in 2015 on devolution 

and one in 2017 on Brexit - and in Scotland, where we are on the stewarding group of the 

Citizens’ Assembly of Scotland, which is looking into the short and long term challenges 

facing the country and how best to deal with them.12  

 
8 https://www.electoralcommission.org.uk/who-we-are-and-what-we-do/our-views-and-research/our-
research/accuracy-and-completeness-electoral-registers/2019-report-2018-electoral-registers-great-
britain/national-estimates-accuracy-and-completeness  
9 https://www.electoralcommission.org.uk/who-we-are-and-what-we-do/changing-electoral-law/a-
modern-electoral-register/modernising-electoral-registration-feasibility-studies 
10 https://ourdemocracy.scot/ 
11 https://citizensassembly.co.uk/  
12 https://www.electoral-reform.org.uk/what-happens-at-the-citizens-assembly-of-scotland/  

Tudalen y pecyn 12

https://www.electoralcommission.org.uk/who-we-are-and-what-we-do/our-views-and-research/our-research/accuracy-and-completeness-electoral-registers/2019-report-2018-electoral-registers-great-britain/national-estimates-accuracy-and-completeness
https://www.electoralcommission.org.uk/who-we-are-and-what-we-do/our-views-and-research/our-research/accuracy-and-completeness-electoral-registers/2019-report-2018-electoral-registers-great-britain/national-estimates-accuracy-and-completeness
https://www.electoralcommission.org.uk/who-we-are-and-what-we-do/our-views-and-research/our-research/accuracy-and-completeness-electoral-registers/2019-report-2018-electoral-registers-great-britain/national-estimates-accuracy-and-completeness
https://www.electoralcommission.org.uk/who-we-are-and-what-we-do/changing-electoral-law/a-modern-electoral-register/modernising-electoral-registration-feasibility-studies
https://www.electoralcommission.org.uk/who-we-are-and-what-we-do/changing-electoral-law/a-modern-electoral-register/modernising-electoral-registration-feasibility-studies
https://ourdemocracy.scot/
https://citizensassembly.co.uk/
https://www.electoral-reform.org.uk/what-happens-at-the-citizens-assembly-of-scotland/


 

 

Petitions are also a good way to engage the public, as the Bill highlights, however it’s 

fundamental that transparent mechanisms are put in place within the process, so petitioners 

can see the decisions undertaken following their petition and the reasons why a petition may 

or may not have been taken forward.  

 

We remain concerned that the legislation may lead to a patchwork of effectiveness at local 

authority level, replicating what we are already seeing. Some local authorities are better than 

others at engaging and using deliberative processes and there is a risk that this legislation 

will perpetuate that. The Welsh Government should develop guidance on the kinds of 

methods they expect from local authorities and hold their effectiveness to account. In their 

Explanatory Memorandum to the Bill Welsh Government report that the legislation “enables 

decisions about the future of local government to be rooted in a renewed democracy, driven 

by active citizenship and transparent political decision making”. We are not convinced that 

the public participation strategies alone will do this.  

 

We are also concerned that this duty may be papering over some of the fundamental 

reasons many people don’t engage with local government. The recent Welsh Government 

evidence synthesis on democractic renewal highlighted concerns around the electoral 

system as a discouraging factor for engagement and turnout, alongside wider trends around 

disengagement, a lack of diversity and a lack of political education.13 Addressing these 

fundamentals should not be forgotten when developing strategies around engagement.  

  

Part 4 – Local Authority Executives, Members, Officers and Committees 

 

Job sharing: executive leaders and executive members 

 

We are pleased to see the inclusion of measures around job sharing for executive positions 

in a local authority. There are major benefits to job sharing of executive leaders and 

members’ roles, including increasing the diversity of members’ perspectives and expertise, 

and reducing the barriers to members with additional requirements being able to take on 

these roles.  

 

This is something that has been proven to work in Swansea Council, which currently holds 

three shared positions, enabling members to share workloads, public visits and make the 

role much more suited to themselves.14 

 

There is a direct link between job sharing and diversity, with members with additional 

requirements typically being women (who are more likely to be in charge of, for example, 

childcare or other caring responsibilities, or to have to juggle other work commitments), yet 

the sharing of roles should not be seen as something just available to women.  

 

 
13 https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/statistics-and-research/2019-03/democratic-renewal-evidence-
synthesis-to-support-local-government-electoral-reform_0.pdf 
14 https://www.swansea.gov.uk/Cabinet  

Tudalen y pecyn 13

https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/statistics-and-research/2019-03/democratic-renewal-evidence-synthesis-to-support-local-government-electoral-reform_0.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/statistics-and-research/2019-03/democratic-renewal-evidence-synthesis-to-support-local-government-electoral-reform_0.pdf
https://www.swansea.gov.uk/Cabinet


Job sharing was also recommended by the Expert Panel on Assembly Electoral Reform for 

the Senedd, but has yet to be enacted. This is an area where local government is clearly 

taking the lead and it is promising to now see that in legislation.  

Standards within local government 

Our work has shown areas of huge concern around the abuse and harassment of those in 

elected office. Standards Committees within local government have the potential to be an 

appropriate response, if they are representative, diverse, transparent and accountable. 

Of 121 politicians that took part in our survey on abuse and harassment in 2018, 21 reported 

that this was either from another politician or within their party.15  

As the recent issues with the Senedd’s Standards Commissioners’ resignation have shown, 

it is vital that these committees include expertise on abuse and harassment within politics. 

They should also be careful not to replicate the lack of diversity in local government, 

ensuring a diverse range of voices on each committee. Furthermore, transparency and 

accountability must go beyond an annual report, with clear and regular updates on issues 

and decisions.  

There is clearly a role for group leaders to play in tackling these issues too, but the 

legislation as it stands is unclear in terms of which steps they are expected to take to 

promote and maintain high standards. Further clarity on this should be sought, with an idea 

of what penalties could be expected if group leaders fail to comply.  

Areas missing from the Bill 

We are disappointed to see a number of proposed changes to local government missing 

from this Bill, particularly around provisions to increase diversity in politics at a local level. 

Local Government is one of the weakest levels of government in terms of diversity. At the 

2017 elections just 28% of those elected were women.16 33% of wards had no female 

candidates at all.17 

This Bill does not address this and we think this is a missed opportunity. 

The specific omissions we are concerned about with this legislation include the lack of an 

Access to Elected Office Fund and quotas to ensure gender balance. 

An Access to Elected Office Fund was a specific recommendation from the Unpacking 

Diversity: Barriers and Incentives to standing for election to the National Assembly for Wales 

report commissioned by the Senedd’s Remuneration Committee, which we also endorsed in 

our New Voices report in 2018.18 Access to funding has often been cited by 

15 https://www.electoral-reform.org.uk/latest-news-and-research/publications/new-voices-how-welsh-
politics-can-begin-to-reflect-wales/#sub-section-12 
16 https://www.electoral-reform.org.uk/latest-news-and-research/publications/new-voices-how-welsh-
politics-can-begin-to-reflect-wales/#sub-section-8 
17 https://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-wales-39721534  
18 http://senedd.assembly.wales/documents/s77244/Unpacking%20Diversity.pdf  

Tudalen y pecyn 14

https://www.electoral-reform.org.uk/latest-news-and-research/publications/new-voices-how-welsh-politics-can-begin-to-reflect-wales/#sub-section-12
https://www.electoral-reform.org.uk/latest-news-and-research/publications/new-voices-how-welsh-politics-can-begin-to-reflect-wales/#sub-section-12
https://www.electoral-reform.org.uk/latest-news-and-research/publications/new-voices-how-welsh-politics-can-begin-to-reflect-wales/#sub-section-8
https://www.electoral-reform.org.uk/latest-news-and-research/publications/new-voices-how-welsh-politics-can-begin-to-reflect-wales/#sub-section-8
https://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-wales-39721534
http://senedd.assembly.wales/documents/s77244/Unpacking%20Diversity.pdf


underrepresented groups as one of the major barriers to engaging in politics and we are 

discouraged that the legislation does not endeavour to address this. An Access to Elected 

Office fund needs to be established by the Welsh Government to offer targeted support to 

people with disabilities, people from ethnic minorities, people from the LGBT community and 

people on a low income.  

It is also clear that the only guaranteed way to boost diversity is to include measures to 

promote positive action. The Atlas of Electoral Gender Quotas argues that “gender quotas 

have proved to be the single most effective tool for ‘fast-tracking’ women’s representation in 

elected bodies of government…Out of the 37 countries that as of November 2013 have more 

than 30 per cent or more women in the lower houses of parliament, 30 (81 per cent) use 

some type of gender quota”.19 This has strong support from groups such as WEN Wales, 

who have a reach of 34k people in their coalition. They recommend legally binding candidate 

gender quotas and can share expertise from around the world in how to achieve this. 

A move to a Single Transferable Vote based electoral system would provide the greatest 

opportunity for the use of gender quotas integrated into the electoral system. The Expert 

Panel on Assembly Electoral Reform recommended the linking of gender quotas to the STV 

system.20 

As we stated in our response to part 1 of the Bill, our preferred option would be for a 

wholesale reform of the voting system in Wales and the Welsh Government should explore 

legislating on integrated gender quotas to go alongside this.  

Conclusion 

As we have identified in our evidence above there are some areas of this Bill which contain 

really exciting plans for reform. The extension of the franchise in particular could change the 

way young people engage with politics at a local level. Furthermore, plans to change the 

registration system could lead to a much more complete register and remove barriers for 

under represented groups.  

Yet, more needs to be done to strengthen the changes to the voting system and ensure 

wholesale reform there. In addition measures around improving transparency and 

engagement need to be much more developed, with serious consideration to how such 

strategies could look and to ensure their effectiveness. 

We remain very disappointed that so little has been done in this legislation to improve the 

diversity of our elected representatives, a fundamental challenge facing local democracy.  

19 https://www.idea.int/sites/default/files/publications/atlas-of-electoral-gender-quotas.pdf 
20

http://www.assembly.wales/NAfW%20Documents/About%20the%20Assembly%20section%20docum
ents/Expert%20Panel%20on%20Assembly%20Electoral%20Reform/A%20Parliament%20that%20Wo
rks%20for%20Wales.pdf  

Tudalen y pecyn 15

https://www.idea.int/sites/default/files/publications/atlas-of-electoral-gender-quotas.pdf
http://www.assembly.wales/NAfW%20Documents/About%20the%20Assembly%20section%20documents/Expert%20Panel%20on%20Assembly%20Electoral%20Reform/A%20Parliament%20that%20Works%20for%20Wales.pdf
http://www.assembly.wales/NAfW%20Documents/About%20the%20Assembly%20section%20documents/Expert%20Panel%20on%20Assembly%20Electoral%20Reform/A%20Parliament%20that%20Works%20for%20Wales.pdf
http://www.assembly.wales/NAfW%20Documents/About%20the%20Assembly%20section%20documents/Expert%20Panel%20on%20Assembly%20Electoral%20Reform/A%20Parliament%20that%20Works%20for%20Wales.pdf


We hope that the Welsh Government and Members of the Senedd will take our comments 

seriously and use them to ensure the Local Government and Elections (Wales) Bill is a 

strong as it can be as it progresses through its legislative journey.  

For further information please contact: 

Jessica Blair 

Director, ERS Cymru 

Tudalen y pecyn 16

mailto:jessica.blair@electoral-reform.org.uk


Mr John Griffiths AM 
Chair of Equality, Local Government & 

Communities Committee 
National Assembly for Wales 
Cardiff Bay 
Cardiff  CF99 1NA 

Reference:    AC/170/caf 
Date issued: 5 December 2019 

Dear John 

Consultation on the Local Government & Elections (Wales) Bill 
1. Thank you for your letter of 22 November 2019 in which you invite views on

the Local Government and Elections (Wales) Bill. I understand that you
would like comments particularly in relation to the provisions of the Bill that
concern the role of the Auditor General. In the time available, I can only
provide preliminary views, but I hope that they are helpful. My colleagues will
provide further views and clarification at your session on 11 December 2019,
and we will provide a further submission by 3 January 2020.

Performance assessment arrangements: performance requirements 
2. I welcome the Bill’s intended improvement of performance assessment

arrangements. The duty to keep performance under review, provided by
section 88, appears to me to be a more realistic and coherent approach than
the improvement principles and duties set out in the Local Government
(Wales) Measure 2009.

3. My predecessor and colleagues at the Wales Audit Office have long had
concerns at the onerous complexity of the 2009 Measure. The numerous
functions and principles imposed by the 2009 Measure have led to
performance improvement work being seen as burdensome and bureaucratic
by some authorities. At the same time, it is not clear that the performance
improvement requirements of the Measure have actually led to improvement
in authorities’ performance, though it is difficult to identify particular effects
given the complex environment that local government operates in, especially
with reductions in funding. It is clear that legislation is needed to repeal the
requirements of the 2009 Measure and to replace them with more realistic
and coherent requirements.

24 Cathedral Road / 24 Heol y Gadeirlan 
Cardiff / Caerdydd 

CF11 9LJ 
Tel / Ffôn: 029 2032 0500 

Fax / Ffacs: 029 2032 0600 
Textphone / Ffôn testun: 029 2032 0660 

info@audit.wales / post@archwilio.cymru 
www.audit.wales / www.archwilio.cymru 

Papur 3 - Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru 
Paper 3 - Wales Audit Office

Tudalen y pecyn 17

Eitem 4

mailto:info@audit.wales
http://www.audit.wales/
http://www.archwilio.cymru/


4. I would also note that the current Bill is much more realistic and 
proportionate in this respect than the November 2015 draft local government 
bill.  

 

Self-assessments 
5. While acknowledging the benefits of encouraging greater self-awareness, I 

am somewhat sceptical about whether the requirements of section 90 in 
themselves will improve the quality of self-assessment. The experience of 
the “Best Value Reviews”, which authorities were required to do under the 
Local Government Act 1999, and more recently of the 2009 Measure, 
demonstrates the potential weaknesses in the approach. These were a lack 
of consistent objectivity and rigour; a reluctance to be critical and a tendency 
to be superficial in gathering and assessing evidence of performance; and 
shortages of the necessary skills and capacity to undertake comprehensive 
assessments. I have no reason to believe that the appetite and capacity for 
objective self-appraisal have increased in the past decade, and I am also not 
convinced that new requirements in themselves will lead to an improved 
situation. 

6. The new provisions for self-assessment are, however, more streamlined than 
the requirements under the 1999 Act and the orders and guidance made 
under that Act and are more coherent and comprehensive than the 
requirements of the 2009 Measure. This should be helpful in connecting 
performance assessment with the audit consideration of arrangements for 
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness (required by section 17(2)(d) 
of the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004).  

7. Finally, it would be helpful if there were a deadline for producing self-
assessments in respect of each financial year: perhaps four months after the 
end of the year. Without a deadline, it would seem that a self-assessment for 
a financial year could be undertaken at some indefinite time in the future.  

Panel assessments 
8. I also have some reservations about whether panel assessments (section 

91) will achieve Welsh Ministers’ intended objectives. As panel members are 
to be appointed by the councils that they are to assess, there is a risk of self-
interest undermining the objectivity of the panel members. I am also 
concerned that the supply and availability of appropriately skilled panel 
members may be rather limited given the number and timing of panel 
assessments required in any given year. I note that section 93 provides for 
the Welsh Ministers to make regulations concerning the appointment of 
panels. Such regulations could be used to set appropriate requirements in 
terms of skills, knowledge and experience of panel members. I am 
nonetheless sceptical that a sufficient pool of suitably qualified and capable 
potential panel members will be available.  

Tudalen y pecyn 18



Special inspections 

9. The Bill’s provisions for special inspections by the Auditor General (sections 
94 to 99) appear appropriate in themselves. While these new provisions 
seem generally similar to the special inspection provisions of the 2009 
Measure, as the focus of the inspections is to be assessing whether councils 
are meeting the performance requirements of section 88, rather than the 
various requirements of Part 1 of the 2009 Measure, these new provisions 
are necessary. And the clearer focus of the new provisions should be helpful 
in scoping and delivering inspections. 

10. I am, however, concerned at how, under section 128 of the Bill, the receipt of 
a report of a special inspection is to be the first condition (along with the 
alternative of an abolition request) for Welsh Ministers making restructuring 
regulations. I realise this is not a simple trigger, as the fourth condition is that 
the Welsh Ministers must be satisfied that, unless they make restructuring 
regulations, effective and convenient local government is not likely to be 
achieved in the area. Nevertheless, with such a link to restructuring 
regulations, I think that there is a real danger of the arrangements 
compromising the Auditor General’s independence and so undermining 
wider audit effectiveness and public trust and confidence in the management 
of public money.  

11. This is particularly likely in a case where the Welsh Ministers request an 
inspection in relation to a council about which there has been speculation as 
to the possibility of restructuring. Having a received a request, the Auditor 
General may be put in an invidious position: be seen as the agent of Welsh 
Ministers in facilitating change against local opposition or side with local 
interests against the wishes of Welsh Ministers. 

12. I also do not think that the conditions set out in section 128 are sufficient or 
helpful in providing a sound basis for deciding on restructuring regulations. 
Aside from special inspection reports (or abolition requests), there is only 
consultation, notice and the Welsh Ministers’ judgement. Focus on these 
conditions seems likely to lead to neglect of consideration of broader relevant 
matters, such as the views of the population of the area. 

13. With the inclusion of special inspections as a condition for making 
restructuring regulations, undertaking a special inspection may become a 
rather difficult process. There is the possibility of reduced co-operation and 
extensive challenge of the inspection process, which may extend to judicial 
review. This would cause the Wales Audit Office to incur significant costs. 

14. I am also concerned that the fee provisions in section 100 of the Bill include 
a strict prohibition on fees exceeding the full cost of the activities to which 
they relate. This adds to the existing problems caused by the Public Audit 
(Wales) Act 2013 prohibiting fees from exceeding the full cost of each 
function at each body to which they relate. As the work of the Auditor 
General involves many different statutory functions—more than a dozen in 
the case of a single local government audit—this leads to a large 
administrative burden in terms of time recording and invoicing. The 

Tudalen y pecyn 19



Committee will be aware of the Finance Committee’s separate consideration 
of the “no more than full cost” rule, which currently governs the charging of 
audit fees, and whether it should be replaced with a more practical 
requirement for fees and expenditure to broadly match over time in 
aggregate so as reduce the complexity of fees and their administration. 

Co-ordination between regulators 
15. Having regard for the need for co-ordination is clearly desirable. However, 

the extensive requirements in section 118 of the Bill, particularly the 
requirement to produce timetables for each council for the exercise of 
functions, are over-prescriptive, largely impractical and unnecessary. For 
example, many inspections by CIW and Estyn are on short notice in order to 
be effective, and it is therefore not appropriate to explicitly timetable these. I 
already have a strategic agreement in place with CIW, Estyn and HIW in 
pursuit of cooperation and coordination through “Inspection Wales”. This 
operates well at both a strategic and operational level, and I therefore view 
prescription of section 118 as unnecessary. 

16. I am also concerned that section 118 may be outside the Assembly’s 
legislative competence. This is because the section requires the Auditor 
General to have regard to the need for co-ordination in the exercise of 
functions, which amounts to a modification by way of an implied amendment 
to section 8(1) of the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2013. Section 8(1) of the 2013 
Act says that the Auditor General has complete discretion in the exercise of 
his functions and is not subject to direction by the Welsh Ministers. Section 
118 therefore seems to fall foul of the prohibition found in section 108(6)(a) 
and para 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 7B to GOWA 2006, which protects section 
8(1) of the 2013 Act from amendment. I recognise that section 118 of the Bill 
is in part a restatement of section 23 of the 2009 Measure. However, the 
2013 Act is subsequent to the 2009 Measure, so its provisions prevail—
section 23 of the 2009 Measure was no longer valid following the 
commencement of the 2013 Act, so cannot be restated. 

General power of competence 
17. The provision for a local authority general power of competence is in 

principle, I think, appropriate. There has been confusion in both community 
councils and unitary authorities in Wales as to whether the general power of 
competence provided by the Localism Act 2010 applies. Welsh provision 
should help prevent such confusion in the future.  

18. I do, however, think that expectations of the flexibility of the general power of 
competence should not be too high. It is not simply a power to do anything 
that individuals may do; it is subject to significant constraints, such as 
limitations on charges, pre-commencement power restrictions, pre- and post-
commencement limitations, and the principles of public law. Authorities will 
need to spend expert time on checking limitations. That said, the general 

Tudalen y pecyn 20



power of competence does provide some additional freedom of action that 
can be useful in some circumstances. 

19. I am, however, somewhat concerned that as community councils have 
limited affordable access to suitably qualified and expert advisers in public 
law there may be an increase in inappropriate projects undertaken by such 
councils. The committee may be aware that I have issued several public 
interest reports in 2019 regarding unlawful expenditure on projects. 

20. I note that section 43 of the draft Bill requires community councils to have 
regard to guidance issued by Welsh Ministers in relation to the exercise of 
general power of competence. I think this is appropriate: such guidance will 
be very important, as many community councils are not familiar with the 
limits of competence set out in Chapter 1 of Part 2 of the Bill and by 
principles of public law. 

21. In relation to the draft Bill’s provision for the use of audit opinions in 
determining community council competence (section 37), I should note that 
while such opinions are of relevance to the abilities of bodies in terms of 
financial management and governance, audit work is not designed to provide 
assurance as to whether a council meets competency requirements. The 
audit provisions in section 17 of the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004 do not 
require audits to address fitness for general competence.  

22. If audit opinions are to be fully appropriate to determining whether a council 
has competence, it will be necessary to amend the scope of audit work. This 
will increase community council audit fees (or they will need to be funded by 
other means). Rather than making this a blanket requirement for all audits, it 
may be more cost-effective if provision were made to require community 
councils to obtain specific reports on fitness for competence. Such reports 
could be provided on an agreement basis under section 19 of the Public 
Audit (Wales) Act 2013. 

Corporate Joint Committees 
23. It seems to me that Corporate Joint Committees fall within the definition of 

joint committees set out in section 12 of the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004. 
However, the Bill and the Explanatory Memorandum do not make this 
explicit. It would be helpful if this were clarified. In any event, and especially 
as they are to hold assets. Corporate Joint Committees will need to prepare 
accounts and be audited. 

24. The Committee may want to note that I, and my predecessor, have 
frequently commented on the complexity of structures and governance in the 
public service landscape in Wales. I am not clear from the provisions of Part 
5 of the Bill, or the explanatory memorandum, whether this will improve or 
worsen complexity. Careful consideration will need to be given through 
guidance and regulation to ensure that there is proper coherence, integration 
and efficiency in the exercise of these provisions.  

Tudalen y pecyn 21



25. The appropriateness of powers to make subordinate legislation, and the 
financial implications of the Bill 

26. It not possible in the time available to provide properly considered comments 
on the appropriateness of the powers in the Bill for Welsh Ministers to make 
subordinate legislation. Likewise, it is not possible in the time available to 
provide proper consideration of the financial implications of the Bill as set out 
in the Explanatory Memorandum. We will, however, endeavour to provide 
such comments by 3 January 2020. 

27. Given the Public Accounts Committee’s interest in issues such as community 
council competence and my comments on the proposed fee regime for 
special inspections, I am copying this letter to the Chairs of the PAC and 
Finance Committee.  

28. My colleagues and I should be happy to support the Committee further, and I 
hope that this material is helpful to you. 

Yours sincerely 
 

 
 
Adrian Crompton 
AUDITOR GENERAL FOR WALES 

 

 

cc: Mr Llyr Gruffydd AM, Chair, Finance Committee 
 Mr Nick Ramsay AM, Chair Public Accounts Committee 

Tudalen y pecyn 22



Y Pwyllgor Cydraddoldeb, Llywodraeth Leol a Chymunedau 

11 Rhagfyr 2019 - tudalen flaen papurau i’w nodi 

Papur rhif: Mater o dan sylw Oddi wrth Cam 

gweithredu 

ELGC(5)-35-19 

Papur 4 

Bil Llywodraeth Leol ac 

Etholiadau (Cymru) 

Llywydd  I’w nodi 

ELGC(5)-35-19 

Papur 5 

Bil Llywodraeth Leol ac 

Etholiadau (Cymru) 

John Griffiths AC I’w nodi 

ELGC(5)-35-19 

Papur 6 

Bil Llywodraeth Leol ac 

Etholiadau (Cymru) 

Julie James AC,  

Y Gweinidog Tai a 

Llywodraeth Leol 

I’w nodi 

ELGC(5)-35-19 

Papur 7 

Ymchwiliad i ddiogelwch tân 

mewn adeiladau uchel iawn 

Grŵp Gweithredu 

Celestia 

I’w nodi 

ELGC(5)-35-19 

Papur 8 

Budd-daliadau yng 

Nghymru: opsiynau i'w 

cyflawni'n well 

Hannah Blythyn AC 

Y Dirprwy Weinidog 

Tai a Llywodraeth 

Leol 

I’w nodi 

ELGC(5)-35-19 

Papur 9 

Craffu ar waith Comisiynydd 

Cenedlaethau’r Dyfodol 

Sophie Howe, 

Comisiynydd 

Cenedlaethau’r 

Dyfodol 

I’w nodi 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 23

Eitem 6



Ein cyf: PO765/EJ/BG

4 Rhagfyr 2019 

Annwyl John, 

Y Bil Llywodraeth Leol ac Etholiadau (Cymru). 

Yn ei gyfarfod yr wythnos hon, trafododd y Pwyllgor Busnes ymateb eich Pwyllgor 

i’r amserlen arfaethedig ar gyfer y Bil Llywodraeth Leol ac Etholiadau (Cymru), yn 

ogystal â’r cynnig amgen a ddaeth i’r amlwg ar ôl cyfarfod y Pwyllgor Busnes yr 

wythnos diwethaf ar gyfer ymestyn Cyfnod 1 drwy gwtogi’r amserlen ar gyfer 

Cyfnod 2. 

Er bod Darren Millar, Rhun ap Iorwerth a Caroline Jones wedi mynegi cefnogaeth 

i’r safbwynt a fynegwyd gan eich Pwyllgor, gwrthwynebodd y Trefnydd unrhyw 

newid i'r amserlen arfaethedig.  

Pwysleisiodd y tri Rheolwr Busnes nad ydynt yn y Llywodraeth bwysigrwydd casglu 

tystiolaeth dda er mwyn creu deddfwriaeth dda, gan fynegi’r farn mai 12 wythnos 

ddylai fod y cyfnod gofynnol ar gyfer cynnal trafodion Cyfnod 1, yn hytrach na’r 

cyfnod safonol neu’r cyfnod hwyaf, yn enwedig ar gyfer Bil mor sylweddol.  

Ailadroddodd y Trefnydd farn y Llywodraeth fod yr amserlen eisoes yn dynn ar 

gyfer gweithredu’r Bil, a bod angen cyfnod llawn ar gyfer trafodion Cyfnod 2 er 

mwyn caniatáu i Aelodau gyflwyno gwelliannau, gan gynnwys amser i weithredu 

argymhellion disgwyliedig y Pwyllgor. O dan system bleidleisio’r Pwyllgor Busnes, 

sef system bleidleisio wedi'i phwysoli, roedd mwyafrif o blaid amserlen 

arfaethedig y Llywodraeth. Yn sgil hynny, cytunwyd ar yr amserlen honno. 

John Griffiths AC 

Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Cydraddoldeb, Llywodraeth Leol a Chymunedau 

Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru  

Bae Caerdydd  

CF99 1NA 

Papur 4 - Llywydd 
Paper 4 - Llywydd

Tudalen y pecyn 24

Eitem 6.1



 

 

 

Yng ngoleuni'r materion a godwyd yn sgil y Bil hwn, cytunodd y Pwyllgor Busnes i 

edrych ar y broses o drefnu’r amserlen ar gyfer craffu ar ddeddfwriaeth fel rhan 

o'i baratoadau ar gyfer y Chweched Cynulliad. 

Yn gywir 

 
 

Elin Jones AC 

Y Llywydd a Chadeirydd y Pwyllgor Busnes 

Tudalen y pecyn 25



5 Rhagfyr 2019 

Gwybodaeth ychwanegol yn dilyn y cyfarfod a gynhaliwyd ar 27 Tachwedd 
2019  

Annwyl Julie, 

Diolch am ymddangos gerbron y Pwyllgor ar 27 Tachwedd ar gyfer y sesiwn 
graffu ar y Bil Llywodraeth Leol ac Etholiadau (Cymru). Yn ystod y cyfarfod, 
gwnaethoch gytuno i ysgrifennu at y Pwyllgor gyda'r wybodaeth a ganlyn:  

- manylion unrhyw ddadansoddiad a wnaed gan Lywodraeth Cymru neu
gan unrhyw un arall mewn perthynas â chynlluniau deisebau, y cynnydd
posibl yn eu defnydd gan y cyhoedd, a goblygiadau tymor hir i brif
gynghorau o ran costau rhedeg cynllun.

- yr amserlen ar gyfer 'cyd-gynhyrchu' canllawiau a threfniadau rheoleiddio a
grëir gan y Bil.

- enghreifftiau neu dystiolaeth o drefniadau hunanasesu effeithiol sydd ar
waith ar draws y byd ar hyn o bryd.

Yn ystod y cyfarfod, nid oeddech yn gallu darparu ymatebion manwl i'n 
cwestiynau ar oblygiadau ariannol y Bil oherwydd cyfyngiadau ar amseriad 
cyllideb ddrafft Llywodraeth Cymru a setliad llywodraeth leol. Yn dilyn y sesiwn, 
cytunwyd i ofyn am ymatebion ysgrifenedig i'r cwestiynau hyn ac am ychydig o 
wybodaeth ychwanegol am rai meysydd eraill a drafodwyd yn ystod y cyfarfod.  

Yn gyntaf, a allwch amlinellu’r cymorth ariannol y bydd Llywodraeth Cymru yn ei 
ddarparu i lywodraeth leol i dalu'r costau ychwanegol y bydd awdurdodau yn eu 
hwynebu o ganlyniad i’r darpariaethau yn y Bil hwn i ehangu’r etholfraint?  A 
allwch hefyd amlinellu sut y bydd Llywodraeth Cymru yn cefnogi awdurdodau 
lleol, gan gynnwys unrhyw gymorth ariannol, i sicrhau bod y systemau 

Julie James AC 
Y Gweinidog Tai a Llywodraeth Leol 

Papur 5 - Llythyr at Lywodraeth Cymru 
Paper 5 – Letter to Welsh Government

Tudalen y pecyn 26

Eitem 6.2



angenrheidiol ar waith i alluogi presenoldeb o bell yng nghyfarfodydd 
cynghorau?  

Yn ystod y cyfarfod, gwnaethoch gadarnhau y byddai canllawiau ar weithredu 
darpariaethau'r Bil yn cael eu cynhyrchu ar y cyd gan Lywodraeth Cymru a 
Chymdeithas Llywodraeth Leol Cymru: a allwch hefyd ddarparu manylion am sut 
y bydd defnyddwyr gwasanaethau eraill, gan gynnwys dinasyddion, yn gallu 
dylanwadu ar y canllawiau o ran eu dylunio a’u darparu. Byddai'n ddefnyddiol 
inni gael copi o’r amserlen ar gyfer cynhyrchu'r canllawiau cyn ein dyddiad cau ar 
gyfer cyflwyno adroddiad ar egwyddorion cyffredinol y Bil. 

Fe gofiwch inni hefyd drafod cymelliadau ariannol posibl i awdurdodau lleol sydd 
am newid i system y Bleidlais Sengl Drosglwyddadwy. A wnewch egluro a fyddai 
Llywodraeth Cymru yn ystyried darparu cymorth ariannol i brif gynghorau sydd 
am newid i system y Bleidlais Sengl Drosglwyddadwy? 

Rydym yn gwerthfawrogi nad yw’n bosibl ichi ymateb i bob un o’r pwyntiau hyn 
cyn i'r gyllideb ddrafft a setliadau llywodraeth leol gael eu cyhoeddi, ond byddem 
yn ddiolchgar am gael ymateb cyn gynted â phosibl ar ôl 16 Rhagfyr.  

Edrychaf ymlaen at eich ymateb. 

Yn gywir,  

John Griffiths AC 

Y Cadeirydd 

Croesewir gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg neu yn Saesneg. 

We welcome correspondence in Welsh or English. 

Tudalen y pecyn 27



Julie James AC/AM 
Y Gweinidog Tai a Llywodraeth Leol 
Minister for Housing and Local Government 

John Griffiths, AC 
Cadeirydd 
Y Pwyllgor Cymunedau, Cydraddoldeb a 
Llywodraeth Leol 
Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru 
Tŷ Hywel 
Bae Caerdydd 
Caerdydd   
CF99 1NA 

Dear John, 

Cynigion i wella darpariaethau mewn deddfwriaeth sylfaenol sy’n darparu ar gyfer 
newidiadau i drefniadau llywodraethu gweithredol mewn prif gynghorau 

Ysgrifennaf atoch i roi gwybod ichi fy mod wedi lansio ymgynghoriad sy’n cynnig 
gwelliannau i ddarpariaethau yn Neddf Llywodraeth Leol 2000 a Mesur Llywodraeth Leol 
(Cymru) 2011 sy’n galluogi newidiadau i drefniadau llywodraethu gweithredol prif 
gynghorau. 

Mae’r ymgynghoriad yn cynnig y dylai deisebau ar gyfer refferenda i newid trefniadau 
llywodraethu gweithredol gael eu cyflwyno o leiaf ddeunaw mis cyn dyddiad yr etholiad 
cyffredin nesaf. Byddai hyn yn rhoi digon o amser i unrhyw refferendwm gael ei gynnal a 
byddai’n galluogi unrhyw etholiad ar gyfer maer i gael ei gynnal ar yr un pryd â’r gyfres 
nesaf o etholiadau cyffredin. Byddai newid yr amserlenni hyn yn cyfyngu ar effaith y  
newidiadau niferus i drefniadau gweithredol mewn cyfnod gweddol fyr, newidiadau a 
fyddai’n siŵr o darfu. Felly, byddai’r dyddiad terfyn hwn hefyd yn berthnasol i ffyrdd eraill o 
sbarduno refferendwm fel gorchymyn neu gyfarwyddyd gan Weinidogion Cymru neu 
benderfyniad gan y prif gyngor. 

Mae’r ymgynghoriad hefyd yn cynnig na fydd modd gwneud rhagor o newidiadau i 
drefniadau gweithredol prif gyngor, pan fo’r trefniadau hynny eisoes wedi cael eu newid, 
nes bod dau gylch etholiadol wedi’u cwblhau.  

Fy mwriad yw bwrw ymlaen â’r darpariaethau hyn trwy gyfrwng gwelliannau Cyfnod 2 o Fil 
Llywodraeth Leol ac Etholiadau (Cymru).  

Rwyf hefyd yn chwilio am opsiynau ar gyfer diweddaru rhai o’r rheoliadau mewn perthynas 
â deisebau fel caniatáu e-ddeisebau, hysbysiadau ar-lein ar gyfer deisebau ac ystyried a 
ddylid diwygio’r trothwy sy’n ofynnol ar gyfer llofnodion i ddeisebau ar gyfer maer sy’n 
sbarduno refferendwm.  

5 Rhagfyr 2019 

Papur 6 - Llywodraeth Cymru 
Paper 6 - Welsh Government 

Tudalen y pecyn 28

Eitem 6.3



Mae’r ymgynghoriad, a fydd yn rhedeg tan 27 Chwefror 2020, yn disgrifio’n fanylach yr hyn 
yr ydym yn cynnig ei wneud, gan amlinellu ein rhesymau. 
 
Dyma gam cyntaf ymgynghoriad dau gam. Rwyf yn bwriadu ymgynghori ar welliannau 
arfaethedig i is-ddeddfwriaeth, gan ystyried yr ymatebion i’r ymgynghoriad hwn. 
 
Darperir y ddogfen ymgynghori i helpu â gwaith y Pwyllgor o graffu ar y Bil. 
 
Edrychaf ymlaen at roi rhagor o gymorth i’r Pwyllgor â’i waith o graffu ar y Bil. 
 
 

 
 
Julie James AC/AM 
Y Gweinidog Tai a Llywodraeth Leol 
Minister for Housing and Local Government  
 
 
 
 

Bae Caerdydd • Cardiff Bay 
Caerdydd • Cardiff 

CF99 1NA 

Canolfan Cyswllt Cyntaf / First Point of Contact Centre:  
0300 0604400 

Gohebiaeth.Julie.James@llyw.cymru                  
Correspondence.Julie.James@gov.Wales 

 
Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg.  Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd 
gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.  
 
We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh.  Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding 
in Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding.   

Tudalen y pecyn 29

mailto:Gohebiaeth.Julie.James@llyw.cymru
mailto:Correspondence.Julie.James@gov.Wales


1 

First Minister Mark Drakeford 

Minister for Housing Julie James AM 

Andrew RT Davies AM  

Stephen Doughty MP  

Vaughan Gething AM  
John Griffiths AM  

Mark Isherwood AM  
David Melding AM 
Leanne Wood AM 
Mick Antonwi AM 

5th December 2019 

Dear Representatives and Supporters, 

Re Urgent - Celestia Cardiff - Celestia Action Group (“CAG”) 

Further to our update on 26th September 2019 we are writing to brief you on the ongoing 
crisis at the Celestia Development in Cardiff Bay. 

It is widely accepted that the serious defects in the development are a direct consequence of 
the failure by Redrow, the developer, to deliver to customers what they had promised and 
sold – a safe and high-quality property. Redrow’s refusal to accept legal liability seems to be 
largely based on the fact that the defects (which were hidden) remained undiscovered for a 
period of just 12 years or so. 

The issues at Celestia are set to receive high profile scrutiny on Monday, 9 December 
(19.30pm) as BBC Wales’ X-Ray consumer affairs programme focuses on the desperate 
plight of residents and leaseholders and Redrow’s attempts to conflate their historic disregard 
for building regulations with the complex issues which have emerged following the Grenfell 
tragedy. 

You may also know that our repeated requests, together with some of your own direct 
appeals to Redrow’s Executive Chairman John Tutte, to agree to a standstill agreement and 
extend the limitation date for claims to protect the interests of some 50 leaseholders by 16 
November, was consistently rejected. So, after some five years plus of delay and prevarication 
leaseholders are highly concerned about Redrow’s continued stance on the huge problems 
facing the development. 

The most immediate and stressful issue facing Celestia homeowners remains the 
Enforcement Notices served by SWFRS on all the buildings in the development. 

At our recent AGM on 26 November we learnt of the details of Redrow’s “soft loan” to deal 
with certain aspects of their fire safety defects. As stated previously Celestia homeowners 
welcome this offer, however, significantly, we learnt that the loan does not guarantee to 
cover all of the costs associated with addressing the fire safety issues. Neither does the loan 
recognise or address the other serious building defects that have been subject to years of 
lengthy discussions and still remain unresolved. 

Redrow continues to refuse to accept responsibility for these serious faults; despite their 
public assertions that they are keen to help and assist homeowners. Consequently, the loan 
received heavy and widespread criticism from leaseholders who worry that Redrow is simply 

Papur 7 - Grŵp Gweithredu Celestia 
Paper 7 - Celestia Action Group

Tudalen y pecyn 30

Eitem 6.4



2  

seeking to alleviate the public and brand scrutiny they are receiving as a result of the crisis. 
There is widespread concern that should we accept the loan in it’s current form, the other 
very serious and more expensive defects would still be facing leaseholders. Redrow’s “broken 
record” for the last five years has been “not our problem” so consequently leaseholders are 
naturally suspicious of their intentions. We estimate the loan offer of £1 million equates to 
approximately 50% of John Tutte’s annual compensation package 

 

At the AGM Leaseholders were also advised that the current initial cost estimates for 
rectifying the known build defects is in excess of £6 million – this excludes the £1million plus 
already spent by homeowners on legal fees and technical surveys /reports. Currently 
homeowners are paying for 24/7 fire watch in the complex. This last year Redrow made 
profits of £406 million! 

 

In circumstances where leaseholders are already under severe financial pressure, funding a 
substantial legal exercise and taking on the additional risk of becoming liable for Redrow’s 
costs is particularly daunting and difficult. 

 

CAG remains acutely aware of the mental and financial stress the continued delays in 
addressing the problems is having on homeowners and remains totally committed to holding 
to account those responsible. We are very aware of the huge impact these financial liabilities 
are having on the well-being of all residents including young families and pensioners who are 
particularly vulnerable. Current estimates put the costs of all repairs per homeowner to be 
in the region of £14,000. Many leaseholders will simply not be able to pay these monies. 

 

CAG remains committed to securing a comprehensive and lasting solution to the problems 
that have beset homeowners. We therefore look forward to urgent and constructive 
discussions with Redrow’s leadership and call on you as our political representatives and 
leaders to urgently lobby Redrow on behalf of 457 homeowners in Cardiff Bay. 

 

We would respectfully ask that you consider: 
 

 Individually writing to Mr John Tutte to express concerns about any continuation of the 
fire safety delays and the potential danger and impact this will have on the well-being 
of some 1500 inhabitants of Celestia as well as wider public safety concerns 

 Visiting the Celestia site to meet residents and inspect some of the build problems – 
we thank those leaders who have already done so 

 Inviting Redrow’s senior leaders to the relevant Welsh Government Committees to 
explain their position – we believe the issues we are experiencing are a matter of wider 
public concern and planning and housing policy 

 The impact of further prolonged delays on addressing problems that have now been 
the subject of some five years of discussion, delays and prevarication 

 The negative impact this whole crisis is having on the image of Cardiff Bay and of 
course Redrow as a leading Welsh house builder with extensive sites around Wales and 
Cardiff. 

 

Please let us know if we can provide you with any further information. We are very grateful 
for your continued support and assistance. 

Yours sincerely, 

CAG Members - You can follow our continued work and actions on Twitter @RedrowRipOff 

Tudalen y pecyn 31



Hannah Blythyn AC/AM 
Y Dirprwy Weinidog Tai a Llywodraeth Leol  
Deputy Minister for Housing & Local Government 

Bae Caerdydd • Cardiff Bay 

Caerdydd • Cardiff 
CF99 1NA 

Canolfan Cyswllt Cyntaf / First Point of Contact Centre: 

0300 0604400 
Gohebiaeth.Hannah.Blythyn@llyw.cymru 

Correspondence.Hannah.Blythyn@gov.wales 

Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg.  Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd 
gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.  

We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh.  Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding 
in Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding.   

Ein cyf/Our ref: MA-HB-5452-19 

John Griffiths AC 
Cadeirydd 
Y Pwyllgor Cydraddoldeb, Llywodraeth Leol a Chymunedau 

5 Rhagfyr 2019 

Annwyl John, 

Hoffwn ddiolch i'r Pwyllgor am eich gwaith gwerthfawr wrth ystyried darparu budd-daliadau 
lles yng Nghymru. Mae ystyriaeth y Pwyllgor o'r dystiolaeth lafar ac ysgrifenedig a 
gyflwynwyd iddo wedi llunio adroddiad ac argymhellion defnyddiol. 

Rwy'n cydnabod bod hwn yn faes cymhleth iawn sy'n hanfodol bwysig ledled Cymru, ac yn 
bwysicaf oll i'n hunigolion, teuluoedd a chymunedau sydd fwyaf agored i niwed. Edrychaf 
ymlaen at gyhoeddi adroddiad Canolfan Polisi Cyhoeddus Cymru, Gweinyddu Nawdd 
Cymdeithasol yng Nghymru ym mis Ionawr 2020. Mae adroddiad y Pwyllgor Cydraddoldeb, 
Llywodraeth Leol a Chymunedau yn gyfraniad pwysig wrth helpu i lunio sut bydd y gwaith o 
asesu'r achos dros ddatganoli'r gwaith o weinyddu budd-daliadau yn datblygu. 

Mae'r tabl atodedig yn nodi ymateb Llywodraeth Cymru i bob argymhelliad. Rwyf wedi 
ymrwymo i roi diweddariadau pellach i'r Pwyllgor mewn perthynas â rhai o'r argymhellion, a 
byddaf yn gwneud hyn wrth i wybodaeth ddod i law, neu wrth i'r gwaith ddatblygu. 

Yn gywir, 

Hannah Blythyn AC/AM 

Y Dirprwy Weinidog Tai a Llywodraeth Leol  
Deputy Minister for Housing and Local Government 

Papur 8 - Llywodraeth Cymru 
Paper 8 - Welsh Government

Tudalen y pecyn 32

Eitem 6.5

mailto:Gohebiaeth.Hannah.Blythyn@llyw.cymru
mailto:Correspondence.Hannah.Blythyn@gov.wales


Adroddiad Pwyllgor Cydraddoldeb, Llywodraeth Lleol a 

Chymunedau Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru Budd-daliadau yng 

Nghymru: Opsiynau i'w Cyflawni'n Well 

Ymateb Llywodraeth Cymru  

 

Argymhelliad 1 

Mae'r Pwyllgor yn argymell y dylai Llywodraeth Cymru sefydlu “system fudd-daliadau 

Gymreig” gydlynol ac integredig ar gyfer yr holl fudd-daliadau sy’n seiliedig ar brawf 

modd y mae’n gyfrifol amdanynt. Fel rhan o hyn, dylai Llywodraeth Cymru ddatblygu 

set o egwyddorion sy’n sail i’w dyluniad a’r dull o’u cyflwyno. Dylai’r egwyddorion hyn 

gael eu cydgynhyrchu gyda phobl sy’n hawlio’r budd-daliadau hyn a’r cyhoedd 

ehangach yng Nghymru.  

Ymateb: Derbyn  

Mae Llywodraeth Cymru wrthi'n cynnal adolygiad trawslywodraethol o'i rhaglenni a'i 

gwasanaethau i sicrhau eu bod yn cael yr effaith fwyaf ar fywydau plant, pobl ifanc a 

theuluoedd sy'n byw mewn tlodi. Bydd yr adolygiad yn cynnwys gweithio ym mhob 

adran o'r llywodraeth i ddatblygu opsiynau er mwyn lleihau costau i deuluoedd a 

hybu incwm, gan ganolbwyntio ar elfennau lle y gall Llywodraeth Cymru wneud 

gwahaniaeth. Bydd hyn yn cynnwys archwilio sut y gellir symleiddio mynediad at 

fudd-daliadau arian parod a gwasanaethau cymorth. Bydd lleisiau plant, pobl ifanc a 

theuluoedd sy'n byw mewn tlodi yn helpu i lunio'r adolygiad, gan gynnwys pa gamau 

gweithredu fydd yn helpu i wella eu sefyllfa o ddydd i ddydd, yn eu barn nhw.  

Mae Canolfan Polisi Cyhoeddus Cymru wrthi'n archwilio achos dros ddatganoli 

gweinyddiaeth agweddau penodol ar y system fudd-daliadau. Fel rhan o'i gwaith 

interim, mae'r Ganolfan wedi nodi, fel man cychwyn, y dylid nodi'r amcanion a 

ddymunir i lywio penderfyniadau am yr hyn y gellid bod angen ei newid, sy'n cyd-

fynd â'r argymhelliad hwn. Mae Llywodraeth Cymru eisoes wedi dechrau amlinellu 

rhai o egwyddorion craidd sy'n cynnwys tosturi, tegwch, urddas a dealltwriaeth, 

gyda'r nod o fabwysiadu dull mwy dyngar sy'n canolbwyntio ar y dinesydd.  Byddwn 

yn adeiladu ar y rhain ymhellach ac yn eu datblygu drwy ein gwaith ymgysylltu 

ehangach, fel rhan o'n hadolygiad o raglenni sy'n mynd i'r afael â thlodi. 

Goblygiadau Ariannol: Caiff unrhyw gostau ychwanegol eu tynnu o gyllidebau 

rhaglenni sy'n bodoli eisoes.  

 

Argymhelliad 2 

Mae'r Pwyllgor yn argymell y dylai Llywodraeth Cymru gyhoeddi manylion yr holl 

fudd-daliadau sy’n seiliedig ar brawf modd y mae’n gyfrifol amdanynt a’r rhai a 

ddarperir ar lefel awdurdodau lleol yng Nghymru, gan gynnwys manylion costau, 

nifer y bobl sy’n gymwys a’r nifer sy’n eu hawlio.  

Tudalen y pecyn 33



Ymateb: Derbyn  

Ar hyn o bryd rydym yn cyhoeddi ar dudalennau gwe'r Llywodraeth y meini prawf 

cymhwysedd ar gyfer holl sgil-fudd-daliadau a sgil-gynlluniau Llywodraeth Cymru: 

https://llyw.cymru/yr-amodau-ar-gyfer-derbyn-sgil-fudd-daliadau-sgil-gynlluniau-eraill 

Byddwn yn sicrhau bod ein datganiadau am gynnydd ar gyfer ein budd-daliadau a 

chynlluniau sy'n seiliedig ar brawf modd bob amser yn rhoi eglurder ar wariant, a'r 

nifer sy'n eu hawlio lle y bo'n ymarferol.  Rydym eisoes yn darparu amcangyfrifon o 

gymhwysedd i gael budd-daliadau lle y mae hyn yn ymarferol, er enghraifft ar gyfer 

Prydau Ysgol Am Ddim. Gall amcangyfrif lefelau cymhwysedd ar gyfer budd-

daliadau fod yn dasg gostus a chymhleth. Byddwn yn ystyried dichonoldeb darparu 

amcangyfrifon cymhwysedd ar gyfer pob un o fudd-daliadau a chynlluniau 

Llywodraeth Cymru. 

Fel rhan o'n hadroddiad Cynnydd Tlodi Plant 2019, a gyhoeddir cyn, byddwn yn 

cynnwys ffeithlen fel atodiad a fydd yn rhoi manylion y cyfraniadau trawslywodraethol 

tuag at fynd i'r afael â thlodi a chanlyniadau o ran nifer y buddiolwyr.   

Goblygiadau Ariannol: Caiff unrhyw gostau ychwanegol eu tynnu o gyllidebau 

rhaglenni sy'n bodoli eisoes.  

 

Argymhelliad 3 

Mae'r Pwyllgor yn argymell y dylai Llywodraeth Cymru sicrhau y gellir defnyddio’r 

Gronfa Cymorth Dewisol yn ystod y cyfnod pan fo pobl yn aros am daliad Credyd 

Cynhwysol cychwynnol, a bod y meini prawf cymhwysedd a’r broses ymgeisio yn 

cael eu newid i adlewyrchu hyn. Rhaid i Lywodraeth Cymru sicrhau bod y broses 

ymgeisio yn gyflym er mwyn sicrhau bod taliadau’n cael eu derbyn yn amserol i 

osgoi caledi ariannol a bod digon o arian ar gael i fodloni pob hawliad.  

Ymateb: Derbyn  

Gall y Gronfa Cymorth Dewisol gael ei defnyddio yn ystod y cyfnod pan fo pobl yn 

aros am daliad Credyd Cynhwysol cychwynnol. Ar hyn o bryd, mae’r Gronfa Cymorth 

Dewisol yn darparu taliadau arian parod brys i bobl sy’n profi caledi mawr, gan 

gynnwys hawlwyr Credyd Cynhwysol sy’n profi caledi yn ystod y cyfnod asesu 

cychwynnol. Nid oes angen newid y meini prawf cymhwystra na’r broses ymgeisio. 

Mae newidiadau diweddar wedi’u gwneud i’r broses ymgeisio sydd wedi arwain at 

amser byrrach i wneud cais, llai o hawliadau wedi'u gadael, a mwy o geisiadau 

llwyddiannus gyda cheisiadau ar-lein yn cymryd llai na phum munud ar gyfartaledd.  

Mae'r broses ymgeisio yn cefnogi ceisiadau ar-lein a dros y ffôn, gyda thaliadau yn 

cyrraedd pobl mewn angen o fewn 24 awr. Talwyd o leiaf 81% o'r taliadau hyn o 

fewn 12 awr.  

Byddwn yn parhau i fonitro'r galw am gymorth gan y Gronfa Cymorth Dewisol yn 

agos, ac yn ystyried sut y gall y gronfa gyflawni a diwallu anghenion pobl sy’n 

Tudalen y pecyn 34

https://llyw.cymru/yr-amodau-ar-gyfer-derbyn-sgil-fudd-daliadau-sgil-gynlluniau-eraill


wynebu caledi mawr, gan gynnwys y rheini sy’n aros am eu taliadau Credyd 

Cynhwysol cychwynnol.  

Goblygiadau Ariannol – Bydd unrhyw gostau ychwanegol yn cael eu tynnu o 

gyllidebau rhaglenni cyfredol.  

Argymhelliad 4 

Mae'r Pwyllgor yn argymell y dylai Llywodraeth Cymru weithredu i wella’r nifer sy’n 

hawlio pob budd-dal yng Nghymru, yn rhai wedi’u datganoli a heb eu datganoli. Dylai 

hyn fod ar ffurf ymgyrch ymwybyddiaeth gyhoeddus eang helaeth o leiaf. Credwn 

hefyd y dylid gosod dyletswydd statudol ar awdurdodau lleol i ddarparu cyngor 

ynghylch budd-daliadau sy’n anelu at sicrhau bod pobl yn hawlio’r holl fudd-daliadau 

y mae ganddynt hawl iddynt. Dylai Llywodraeth Cymru sicrhau bod cyllid ar gael i 

awdurdodau lleol er mwyn cyflawni’r ddyletswydd hon.  

Ymateb: Derbyn mewn egwyddor 

Byddwn yn parhau i hyrwyddo a chynyddu'r nifer sy'n hawlio budd-daliadau lles 

datganoledig a rhai nad ydynt wedi'u datganoli yng Nghymru, a byddwn yn parhau i 

ymgysylltu'n barhaus â Llywodraeth y DU, drwy'r Adran Gwaith a Phensiynau, er 

mwyn sicrhau ei fod yn codi ymwybyddiaeth ac yn cynyddu nifer y bobl sy'n hawlio 

budd-daliadau nad ydynt wedi'u datganoli. Rydym yn cydnabod y canlyniadau 

cadarnhaol i bobl ac i economi Cymru a sicrheir drwy fentrau sy'n galluogi aelwydydd 

ac unigolion i gael eu hawl cyfreithiol i fudd-daliadau lles.  

Yn ddiweddar rydym wedi ymgymryd â phroses gaffael drylwyr a bydd y Gronfa 

Cyngor Strategol newydd yn dechrau ar 1 Ionawr 2020. Byddwn yn monitro'r 

gwasanaethau a ddarperir ac yn gwerthuso eu heffeithiolrwydd. Yn ystod 2018-2019 

llwyddodd darparwyr cyngor a ariennir drwy grant Llywodraeth Cymru i helpu pobl i 

hawlio cyfanswm o £55m mewn incwm budd-daliadau lles ychwanegol.  Mae ein dull 

yn seiliedig ar yr ymgyrchoedd hawlio budd-daliadau hynod effeithiol a llwyddiannus, 

sy'n rhoi gwybodaeth hygyrch i bobl sy'n codi eu hymwybyddiaeth o fudd-daliadau 

lles, ac yn eu galluogi i wneud dewis hyddysg ynghylch gwneud cais. Byddwn hefyd 

yn sicrhau bod lefelau priodol o adnoddau ar gael o fewn cymunedau lleol fel y gall 

pobl, yn enwedig y rhai sydd fwyaf agored i niwed, gael gafael ar y cyngor a'r 

cymorth sydd eu hangen arnynt i gwblhau'r holl brosesau sy'n ofynnol er mwyn 

gwneud cais llwyddiannus am fudd-daliad.  

Byddai’n rhaid inni ystyried yn ofalus ynghylch cynnig rôl benodol i awdurdodau lleol, 

gan gynnwys o ystyried pwerau datganoledig, a’u swyddogaethau statudol cyfredol.  

Rydym yn cydnabod bod y rhan fwyaf o awdurdodau lleol yng Nghymru eisoes naill 

ai'n darparu cyngor ar fudd-daliadau lles yn uniongyrchol neu'n ei ariannu drwy 

ddulliau a gynllunnir yn lleol. Er enghraifft, gellir darparu gwasanaethau cyngor ar 

fudd-daliadau gan awdurdodau lleol drwy ddyletswyddau statudol presennol, megis 

Deddf Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Llesiant (Cymru) 2014 a Rhan 2 o Ddeddf Tai 

(Cymru) 2014. Gall y rhain gynnwys gwasanaethau sy'n targedu pobl yn y 

Tudalen y pecyn 35



boblogaeth leol sydd fwyaf anghenus, megis y rhai sy'n defnyddio gwasanaethau 

ymyrryd mewn argyfwng.  

Byddwn yn gweithio gyda rhanddeiliaid allweddol, yn enwedig gydag awdurdodau 

lleol, er mwyn sicrhau bod y Gronfa Gynghori Sengl yn parhau i fod yn ddull effeithiol 

o gefnogi unigolion a theuluoedd i hawlio eu budd-daliadau yn llawn. 

Goblygiadau Ariannol: Caiff unrhyw gostau ychwanegol eu tynnu o gyllidebau 

rhaglenni sy'n bodoli eisoes 

 

Argymhelliad 5 

Mae'r Pwyllgor yn argymell y dylai Llywodraeth Cymru fynd ati ar y cyd â 

Llywodraeth y DU i archwilio’r mecanweithiau gorau i wella llais Cymru ym 

mhenderfyniadau Llywodraeth y DU ynglŷn â pholisi nawdd cymdeithasol. Dylai 

Llywodraeth Cymru ddarparu diweddariad am y trafodaethau hyn ar ein cyfer ymhen 

chwe mis.  

Ymateb: Derbyn 

Mae gan Lywodraeth Cymru gydberthnasau gwaith da ar lefel swyddogol â'r Adran 
Gwaith a Phensiynau, wedi'u hategu gan y concordat y cytunwyd arno yn ddiweddar. 
Byddwn yn ceisio ailsefydlu cyswllt Gweinidogol rheolaidd yn dilyn Etholiad 
Cyffredinol y DU i ystyried sut y gallwn gryfhau cydberthnasau dwyochrog 
ymhellach. 
 
Ers i'r Pwyllgor gyflwyno ei adroddiad, mae swyddogion Llywodraeth Cymru wedi 
tynnu sylw cymheiriaid yn llywodraethau eraill y DU at yr argymhelliad hwn gyda'r 
nod o'i archwilio ymhellach fel rhan o ffrwd waith yr Adolygiad o Gydberthnasau 
Rhynglywodraethol ar y cyd a gomisiynwyd yn y Cyd-bwyllgor Gweinidogion 
(Cyfarfod Llawn) ym mis Mawrth 2018. Rydym yn parhau i wthio am gynnydd ar yr 
Adolygiad hwn ac yn disgwyl i Lywodraeth newydd y DU wneud hyn yn brif 
flaenoriaeth. Byddwn yn parhau i ddiweddaru'r Cynulliad.  
 
Goblygiadau Ariannol: Caiff unrhyw gostau ychwanegol eu talu o gyllidebau 

rhaglenni sy'n bodoli eisoes.  

 

Argymhelliad 6 

Mae'r Pwyllgor yn argymell y dylai Llywodraeth Cymru ddefnyddio’r dull Pecyn 

Cymorth Bywoliaethau Cynaliadwy wrth ddarparu’r holl fudd-daliadau datganoledig a 

ddarperir yng Nghymru ar hyn o bryd.  

Ymateb: Derbyn  
 
Rydym yn cefnogi'r defnydd ehangach o ddull pecyn Bywoliaethau Cynaliadwy 
Oxfam sy'n cael ei ddefnyddio ledled Cymru.  Rydym yn cymeradwyo cysyniad y dull 
cyfranogol ar sail y gydnabyddiaeth bod gan bawb alluoedd ac asedau y gellir eu 
datblygu i'w helpu i wella eu bywydau. Mae angen i ni ennill dealltwriaeth llawer 

Tudalen y pecyn 36



gwell o'r ffordd mae sefydliadau partner yn ymgorffori'r dull hwn ar hyn o bryd er 
mwyn datblygu ein dull ar gyfer ehangu hyn, a hyrwyddo'r defnydd ohono ymhellach. 
Byddwn yn ceisio cyngor gan Oxfam ar y ffordd orau o ymgorffori'r dull hwn.  
 
Goblygiadau Ariannol: Caiff unrhyw gost ychwanegol ei thalu o gyllidebau 

rhaglenni sy'n bodoli eisoes. 

 

Argymhelliad 7 

Mae'r Pwyllgor yn argymell y dylai Llywodraeth Cymru gynnal astudiaeth 

ddichonoldeb o gynyddu’r trothwy ar gyfer prydau ysgol am ddim i £14,000. Dylid ei 

chynnal mewn modd amserol fel bod y trothwy diwygiedig ar waith ar gyfer dechrau 

tymor ysgol 2020/21 os yw’r cynnydd yn ddichonadwy yn ariannol.  

Ymateb: Eisoes wedi’i gwblhau 

Ystyriwyd cyflwyno trothwy o £14,000 cyn cyflwyno’r trothwy newydd fis Ebrill. 

Amcangyfrifwyd, unwaith y byddai Credyd Cynhwysol wedi'i gyflwyno'n llawn, y 

byddai trothwy incwm net a enillwyd o £14,000 yn dyblu nifer y cohort cymwys i gael 

prydau ysgol am ddim (ac felly’r costau blynyddol) o gymharu â throthwy o £7,400. 

Nid yw hyn yn ystyried costau ychwanegol amddiffyn wrth bontio a’r costau 

ehangach ar gyllidebau eraill, fel cynnydd yn nifer y disgyblion sy’n gymwys ar gyfer 

y Grant Datblygu Disgyblion.  

Mae'r Pwyllgor wedi argymell, os bydd trothwy uwch i'w weld yn hyfyw, y dylid ei roi 

ar waith yn barod ar gyfer dechrau tymor yr ysgol 2020/21. Ar wahân i'r costau, mae 

ystyriaethau eraill a fyddai'n ein hatal rhag cyflwyno trothwy diwygiedig erbyn mis 

Medi 2020. Er enghraifft, yn ogystal â fforddiadwyedd, mae ystyriaethau pwysig 

ynghylch ymgynghoriad cyhoeddus ac amserlennu deddfwriaethol yn gysylltiedig â 

chyflwyno trothwy uwch a byddai hefyd angen ymgorffori newidiadau i'r system 

gyfrifiadurol ar gyfer cadarnhau pwy sy'n gymwys (y mae Adran Addysg y DU yn 

berchen arni ond caiff ei defnyddio gan awdurdodau lleol yng Nghymru i brosesu 

ceisiadau am brydau ysgol am ddim).  

Mae’n siomedig iawn bod Llywodraeth y DU wedi methu gwneud yn iawn ar ran pobl 

Cymru, a darparu adnoddau ychwanegol i reoli effaith ei hagenda Diwygio Lles ar 

brydau ysgol am ddim. Er gwaethaf hyn, mae Llywodraeth Cymru wedi dyrannu £12 

miliwn yn ychwanegol rhwng 2018-19 a 2019-20 i helpu Awdurdodau Lleol i dalu’r 

costau yn sgil y cynnydd a amcangyfrifir yn nifer y plant cymwys am brydau ysgol am 

ddim a’r cynnig o fesurau amddiffyn wrth bontio.  

Mae ein rhaglen o amddiffyn wrth bontio yn sicrhau y bydd y newid i feini prawf 

cymhwysedd prydau ysgol am ddim a gyflwynwyd ym mis Ebrill 2019 yn amharu cyn 

lleied â phosibl ar deuluoedd. Rydym yn amcangyfrif y bydd cyfanswm nifer y plant 

sy'n defnyddio'r rhaglen amddiffyn wrth bontio mewn unrhyw flwyddyn yn ystod 

cyfnod cyflwyno'r Credyd Cynhwysol yn ddegau o filoedd. Nawr bod y trothwy ar 

waith, caiff y disgyblion sy'n gymwys i gael prydau ysgol am ddim am fod eu 

teuluoedd yn cael Credyd Cynhwysol neu fudd-daliadau etifeddol, neu unrhyw 

Tudalen y pecyn 37



hawlwyr newydd sy'n cael prydau ysgol am ddim yn ystod cyflwyno Credyd 

Cynhwysol ar yr un sail, eu hamddiffyn rhag colli prydau ysgol am ddim tra bod 

Credyd Cynhwysol yn cael ei gyflwyno ledled Cymru, hyd yn oed os bydd eu 

cymhwysedd yn newid. Unwaith y bydd Credyd Cynhwysol wedi'i gyflwyno'n llawn, 

bydd unrhyw hawlwyr presennol nad ydynt yn bodloni'r meini prawf cymhwysedd 

mwyach (am eu bod yn ennill yn uwch na'r trothwy) yn parhau i gael eu hamddiffyn 

tan ddiwedd cyfnod addysg cyfredol y disgybl (er enghraifft, nes ei fod yn gorffen y 

cyfnod cynradd neu'r cyfnod uwchradd). 

Dylid nodi bod y meini prawf i fod yn gymwys am brydau ysgol am ddim yng 

Ngogledd Iwerddon yn wahanol iawn i rai Cymru, hyd yn oed cyn cyflwyno’r 

trothwyon. Mabwysiadwyd trothwy o £14,000 yng Ngogledd Iwerddon gan 

amcangyfrif y byddai hynny yn cael effaith mor agos i niwtral â phosib. Yr un yw’r 

bwriad gyda’n trothwy ni. Hefyd nid yw Gogledd Iwerddon wedi cyflwyno rhaglen 

amddiffyn wrth bontio, yn wahanol i ni yng Nghymru. 

Mae ein gwaith dadansoddi yn seiliedig ar y modelau a’r data gorau sydd ar gael. 

Fodd bynnag, mae llawer o ansicrwydd o hyd ynghylch yr amcangyfrifon hyn, yn sgil 

ffactorau fel newidiadau ymddygiad, er enghraifft. Ar ben hynny, bydd rhagolygon 

economaidd a’r data sylfaenol a ddefnyddir yn ein model ar gyfer ein gwaith 

dadansoddi yn parhau i gael eu diweddaru, gan effeithio ar ein hamcangyfrifon. 

Gan gofio’r ansicrwydd ynghylch yr amcangyfrifon hyn, rydym yn parhau i fod wedi 

ymrwymo i adolygu’r terfyn ar enillion o fewn 12 mis i gyflwyno Credyd Cynhwysol yn 

llawn yn 2023. 

Goblygiadau Ariannol – Dim. Rydym, fodd bynnag, wedi ymrwymo i adolygu’r 

trothwy o fewn 12 mis i gyflwyno Credyd Cynhwysol yn 2023, ac fe fydd unrhyw 

oblygiadau ariannol yn cael eu hystyried bryd hynny. 

 

Argymhelliad 8 

Mae'r Pwyllgor yn argymell y dylai'r diffiniad o ofal gan berthynas gael ei ehangu i 

gynnwys aelodau’r teulu ac eraill sydd â chysylltiad agos â’r teulu ond sy’n bobl 

wahanol i’r rhieni ac sy’n gofalu am blentyn neu berson ifanc mewn rhinwedd 

anffurfiol, llawn-amser. Dylid gwneud hyn cyn gynted â phosibl.  

Ymateb: Derbyn mewn egwyddor 

Rydym yn cydnabod y cyfraniad pwysig a wneir gan ofal gan berthynas ac rydym 

wedi cymryd camau o fewn pwerau Llywodraeth Cymru i gefnogi'r rhai sy'n darparu 

gofal gan berthynas. Er enghraifft, mae ein Cynnig Gofal Plant ar gael i ofalwyr sy'n 

berthnasau lle maent yn bodloni'r meini prawf enillion ac yn gofalu am blentyn sydd 

o'r oedran cywir i gael y Cynnig. Drwy hyn, cynigir cymorth i ofalwyr sy'n berthnasau 

sydd wedi cymryd cyfrifoldeb am blentyn, neu lysblentyn, lle nad nhw yw'r rhiant, er 

enghraifft, pan nad oes gan y plentyn rieni neu sydd â rhieni na allant ofalu am y 

plentyn, neu ei bod yn debygol y byddai'r plentyn yn cael gofal gan awdurdod lleol, 

fel arall, oherwydd pryderon mewn perthynas â lles y plentyn.  

Tudalen y pecyn 38



Rydym yn deall y gall gofal gan berthynas olygu ystod o drefniadau â statysau 

cyfreithiol gwahanol, megis gofal maeth gan berthynas, gorchmynion gwarchodaeth 

arbennig, maethu preifat, a threfniadau anffurfiol a wneir gyda pherthnasau agos o 

fewn teuluoedd.  Bydd yr help a'r cymorth y mae gan y gofalwyr hyn sy'n berthnasau 

hawl iddynt yn dibynnu ar y math o drefniant.  Er mwyn helpu i sicrhau bod yr holl 

gymorth sydd ar gael yn hygyrch, mae Plant yng Nghymru yn cydweithio â ni i 

ddiweddaru ein canllaw gofal gan berthynas, sy'n helpu i egluro'r statysau cyfreithiol 

a'r hawliadau am gymorth amrywiol i ofalwyr sy'n berthnasau. Bydd canllaw ar-lein 

newydd yn 2020.   

Byddwn yn gofyn i Lywodraeth nesaf y DU, fel mater o frys, i adolygu'r 

gydnabyddiaeth o ofal anffurfiol, llawn amser gan berthnasau o ran yr holl fudd-

daliadau nad ydynt wedi'u datganoli, ac i roi meini prawf budd-daliadau, sy'n fwy 

tosturiol a theg, ar waith i roi mwy o gymorth i ofalwyr sy'n berthnasau o'r fath. 

Goblygiadau Ariannol – Dim, am ei fod yn cyfeirio at gymhwysedd i gael budd-

daliadau nad ydynt wedi'u datganoli. 

 

Argymhelliad 9 

Mae'r Pwyllgor yn argymell y dylai Llywodraeth Cymru geisio am drefniadau hyblyg 

ar gyfer talu Credyd Cynhwysol fel y gall pobl yng Nghymru ddewis: cael taliadau 

mwy mynych, taliadau uniongyrchol i’r landlord, a rhannu taliadau rhwng cyplau. 

Credwn y dylid bwrw ymlaen â hyn ar frys, a byddem yn gofyn am ddiweddariad o 

fewn chwe mis i gyhoeddi’r adroddiad ar y trafodaethau a’r broses o roi hyblygrwydd 

talu ar waith.  

Ymateb: Derbyn mewn egwyddor 

Byddwn yn ceisio archwilio ymarferoldeb hyn ymhellach gyda’r Adran Gwaith a 
Phensiynau, yn dilyn Etholiad Cyffredinol y DU, er mwyn pennu sut y gallai 
trefniadau hyblyg ar gyfer talu Credyd Cynhwysol gael eu cynnig yn gyffredinol 
ledled Cymru. Byddwn hefyd yn ceisio deall y fframwaith cyfreithiol a fyddai’n sail i 
hynny ac asesu unrhyw gostau gweinyddol a fyddai’n cael eu hysgwyddo gan 
Lywodraeth Cymru. 
 
Rhoddir ystyriaeth i’r argymhelliad hwn yng ngoleuni profiad ehangach, yn enwedig o 
ystyried y profiad yn yr Alban. Mae Deddf yr Alban 2016 wedi galluogi Gweinidogion 
yr Alban i gyflwyno hyblygrwydd penodol mewn perthynas â thalu Credyd Cynhwysol 
yn yr Alban. Gyda'i gilydd, gelwir y rhain yn Hyblygrwydd Credyd Cynhwysol. Yr 
Adran Gwaith a Phensiynau sy'n gyfrifol am weinyddu'r gwaith o dalu a dyrannu 
Credyd Cynhwysol o hyd.  Fodd bynnag, mae'r hyblygrwydd yn galluogi Llywodraeth 
yr Alban i fynegi barn am y ffordd y caiff rhai o'r trefniadau talu ar gyfer Credyd 
Cynhwysol eu gweinyddu yn yr Alban, er nad yw'n rheoli'r broses dalu wirioneddol.  
Mae'r pwerau hyn yn caniatáu i Lywodraeth yr Alban amrywio amlder y taliad; talu'r 
costau tai perthnasol yn y dyfarniad Credyd Cynhwysol yn uniongyrchol i'w landlord; 
a phenderfynu ar y meini prawf pan ellir gwneud taliad a rennir i hawlwyr ar y cyd. 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 39



Mae'r ystadegau diweddaraf a gyhoeddwyd gan yr Adran Gwaith a Phensiynau yn 
dweud wrthym fod 106,170 o aelwydydd ar Gredyd Cynhwysol yng Nghymru a bod 
98,080 (92%) yn cael taliad Credyd Cynhwysol. O'r aelwydydd hyn sy'n cael taliad: 
 

 roedd 2,990 (3%) o aelwydydd yn cael taliad mwy mynych; 

 roedd gan 60,470 (62%) hawl i gael cymorth tai, gyda 14,030 (23%) wedi trefnu 
i'r taliad hwn fynd i'w landlord drwy Drefniant Talu Amgen 

 
Mae Llywodraeth Cymru am weld holl hawlwyr Credyd Cynhwysol yn cael cynnig 
mwy hyddysg o ran amlder y taliad, p'un a yw costau tai yn cael eu talu'n 
uniongyrchol i'r landlord a thaliadau a rennir rhwng cyplau.  Mae'n glir ar hyn o bryd 
bod yr arfer o ddefnyddio Trefniadau Talu Amgen (APA) yn anghyson ledled Cymru.  
Byddwn yn ceisio archwilio'r dichonoldeb ymhellach gyda'r Adran Gwaith a 
Phensiynau, yn dilyn Etholiad Cyffredinol y DU er mwyn sefydlu sut y gellid cynnig 
hyblygrwydd taliad Credyd Cynhwysol yn fwy cyffredinol ledled Cymru, i ddeall beth 
fyddai'r fframwaith cyfreithiol tanategol ar gyfer hyn, ac i asesu unrhyw gostau 
gweinyddol yr eir iddynt ac a roddir ar Lywodraeth Cymru.   
 

Goblygiadau Ariannol – Bydd unrhyw gostau ar gyfer cam presennol y gwaith 

archwilio hwn yn cael eu tynnu o gyllidebau rhaglenni cyfredol. Yn sgil cwblhau’r 

gwaith archwilio presennol hwn, bydd angen cynnal gwaith cwmpasu pellach, a fydd 

yn cynnwys asesiad o unrhyw oblygiadau ariannol ychwanegol. 

 

Argymhellion 10-17 

Nid ydym mewn sefyllfa i allu ymateb yn llawn ar hyn o bryd i argymhellion 10-17. 

Rydym yn aros i waith a gomisiynwyd gennym gan Ganolfan Polisi Cyhoeddus 

Cymru gael ei gwblhau, er mwyn inni edrych ar yr achos dros ddatganoli 

gweinyddiaeth agweddau ar y system fudd-daliadau. Disgwylir i Ganolfan Polisi 

Cyhoeddus Cymru gyhoeddi eu canfyddiadau ym mis Ionawr 2020.  

O ystyried archwiliad parhaus Canolfan Polisi Cyhoeddus Cymru, ni fyddem, ar y 

cam hwn, yn achub y blaen ar ystyriaethau drwy ddiystyru unrhyw fudd-daliadau 

penodol o fewn neu tu hwnt i'r cwmpas. Byddwn yn ystyried argymhellion y Pwyllgor 

yn llawn ar ôl inni gael y canfyddiadau hynny, gan adrodd yn ôl i’r Pwyllgor yn 

briodol.  

Rydym yn ddiolchgar iawn am y dystiolaeth a’r ystyriaeth a roddir gan y Pwyllgor, 

mewn perthynas ag argymhellion 10-17. A bydd hynny o ddefnydd wrth fynd â’r 

gwaith archwilio rhagddo.  

 

 

Goblygiadau Ariannol – dim 

Tudalen y pecyn 40



By email 

06/12/2019 

RE: Correspondence from the Chair of the ELGC Committee 

Dear John, 

Please see the response to the questions you sent me in your letter dated 19 November 2019. 

Yours Sincerely, 

Sophie Howe 
Future Generations Commissioner for Wales 

Papur 9 - Comisiynydd Cenedlaethau’r Dyfodol Cymru 
Paper 9 - Future Generations Commissioner for Wales

Tudalen y pecyn 41

Eitem 6.6



During the meeting, you mentioned that the Minister for Housing and Local Government was undertaking a 
review of the various partnership boards. Could you provide more detail about the review and clarify your role, 
if any, in the review? 

Further details can be found here. 

My team have engaged with officials to provide my views of the need to clarify the governance arrangements 
between various partnership boards. My letter to the Minister outlines these issues (letter to Julie James AM 
attached). 

You also stated that you were in the process of agreeing a common understanding with Welsh Government 
officials of how the Well-being of Future Generations Act is applied. Could you please provide more details of 
the discussions you have had with the Welsh Government regarding the Act’s application? 

My team and I have had several meetings over the past year with WG officials with policy oversight for the Well-
being of Future Generations Act to discuss our understanding of the application of the duties under Act. These 
discussions are still ongoing. See also the transcript on this question. 

What is your view on the level of public understanding and awareness of the Well-being of Future Generations 
Act and of your role?  

• Growing understanding of the Act and my role but still a way to go.

• People often write to me asking that I intervene in specific schemes, stop developments, review complaints

and quash decisions. For example:

o 40% of the letters I received this year ask that I intervene in some way or another in individual decisions,

mainly planning and transport but also about opening of fast food outlets around schools, loss of local

amenities or to stop the roll out of 5G.

• Elected representatives (AMs and Councillors) also ask me to get involved in individual cases despite my lack

of case-work function.

• It is not easy for the public and everyone to grasp what my role entails because there is no uniformity of
functions between the Commissioners – most have case work functions, some can issue fines (Welsh
Language Commissioner), some can help with individual cases (Children’s Commissioner, EHRC), some can
champion individual rights (Older People and Children) but my role is only one of a promoter.

o This can be amended in law by the Assembly at any time.

• We have published FAQs on my website to clarify the different duties in the Act, as well as my own powers,
duties and areas of focus and where relevant we share these with correspondents.

• Awareness raising is an important part of my role and the involvement work we have been doing on the
Future Generations report in the past 12 months builds on work done earlier in my term.

Tudalen y pecyn 42

https://www.wlga.wales/review-of-strategic-partnerships-june-2019
https://www.wlga.wales/review-of-strategic-partnerships-june-2019


 

 
Can you provide examples of when the Planning Inspectorate Wales has rejected planning appeals on the basis 
of inconsistency with the well-being goals and objectives (as referenced in your annual report)? 
 
Decision 3202863 (Pets at home) 
Appeal Ref: APP/M6825/H/18/3202863 Site address: Unit 4, Cross Hands Retail Park, Llandeilo Road, Cross Hands, 
SA14 6NB 
 
Decision 3210628 (felling of oak tree) 
Appeal Ref: APP/Q6810/A/18/3210628 Site address: Land at Ty Du Road, Llanberis LL55 4HD 
 
We are also aware that there has been mention by Nick Ramsay AM in plenary on 8 October 2019 of a planning 
application for 111 houses on the edge of Raglan which had been called in by the Welsh Government was refused 
by the Planning Inspector, primarily on the grounds of conflict with the WFG Act, but we have not seen that 
decision yet. 
 
We are in regular contact with the planning inspectorate and involve them in our work on planning. 
 
What are the key messages coming out of the work with Cardiff Business School on skills?  
 
You will find all relevant information here. 

Our White paper calls for: 

• A significant increase in the number of teaching staff and resources to deliver the new curriculum, if it is to 
reach its potential. 

• Learning to be created and delivered in partnership with businesses, charities and other organisations across 
Wales. 

• A radical re-think of qualifications at age 16. The paper argues that current GCSEs are no longer fit for 
purpose and should be re-considered to reflect the aspirations of the Curriculum for Wales 2022 and the 
changing economy. 

• Assessments that focus on diversity, are centred around pupils not testing, providing greater academic value 
and benefit. 

How can public bodies be encouraged to look to the future when thinking about what skills will be needed? - 
Can you outline the next steps following the publication of the ‘Education Fit for the Future’ white paper? 
 
See the link provided above and guidance that I have issued to public bodies here.  
 
Can you outline the work you have undertaken with the Welsh Government on this year’s budget, and what 
changes you expect to see. What have the main challenges been in this area?  
 

Tudalen y pecyn 43

https://futuregenerations.wales/resources_posts/education-fit-for-the-future-in-wales-report/
https://futuregenerations.wales/resources_posts/education-fit-for-the-future-in-wales-report/
https://futuregenerations.wales/wp-content/uploads/2019/09/FINAL-Prosperous-Wales-Topic-5-1.pdf
https://futuregenerations.wales/wp-content/uploads/2019/09/FINAL-Prosperous-Wales-Topic-5-1.pdf


 

• The budget process is a focus for my office – both in terms of the draft budget that is published in the autumn 

and the budget decision making that happens all year round.  

 

• This year I have focused on two areas:  

o Decarbonisation: how the Government is investing at levels that will meet their declaration of a climate 

emergency. 

o Prevention: how Government is using the definition of prevention across portfolios and is making 

different decisions as a result.  

 

• My team work closely with the Strategic Budgeting Division – largely a helpful relationship although it has 

been less collaborative this year than in previous years:  

o We held a workshop on the 10-point plan to give officials the opportunity to input 

o We received input from Social Finance on different models of investment in prevention – Social Impact 

Bonds 

 

• On prevention, I have been concerned by the lack of evidence that decisions are changing in relation to the 

definition of prevention. I have written to all Ministers requesting written responses to the following 

questions:  

o What role does your department play in delivering the overall vision of shifting to preventative 

approaches, and what contribution are you currently making? 

o How have you applied the prevention definition across spend in a systematic and robust manner? 

o What assessment have you made of the proportion of your investment that is in 

primary/secondary/tertiary prevention, or in the acute space? 

o How are you clearly defining what you are trying to prevent, and what evidence is there that your 

investment is supporting the preventative approaches that will improve outcomes for people in Wales? 

I.e. how do you know you are investing in the programmes that will make the most difference? 

o How are you asking other public services you work with or fund to apply the prevention definition? 

o On the basis of the points above, have you made changes to investment for the 2020-21 budget?   

 
Responses: 
 

• Ministers have generally given a list of projects and how they fit with the WFG Act generally but they do not 

present a coherent understanding of how they have considered whether they are taking all reasonable steps 

to meet their wellbeing objectives. This has been raised with the Permanent Secretary’s leadership group and 

follow up meetings with officials are being held in January. 

• Prevention – difficult to see a coherent approach to taking preventative action across Government. Further 

work needs to be undertaken within Government to develop understanding of difference between primary, 

Tudalen y pecyn 44



 

secondary, tertiary and acute spend and whether the actions taken in each portfolio are the most actions to 

prevent problems occurring or getting worse are required by the Act.    

• Decarbonisation – little sense of how activity has been scaled up to meet the climate emergency and lack of 

comprehensive or coherent assessment of the carbon impact of Welsh Government spending.  

 
Whether you have received a response to the advice you provided to the Welsh Government following last 
year’s budget.  
 

• Following my monitoring of the draft budget last year I published advice to Government in December with 

ten recommendations about how the annual budget process can take more ambitious and transformational 

steps from 2019 onwards, to enable Government to take a bolder approach to transforming budget strategy 

and decision making in line with the ambition of the WFG Act.  

 

• I have had three meetings with the Finance Minister to discuss these recommendations and I have focused 

my attention on the recommendation to develop some sort of ‘journey checker’ for the budget process came 

from both Finance Committee and from myself last year.  

 

• In response WG have developed a budget improvement plan which sets out actions over a 5-year period, in 

relation to a number of themes including Spending Decisions, Assessing Impact and Tax Strategy. I understand 

that this plan will be published as part of the draft budget on 19th November.  

 

• Whilst this was only shared with me recently and I am therefore still considering the content and quality I 

think that overall it is a good first attempt to set out what year-on-year progress looks like. My initial 

assessment of strengths and weaknesses are as follows. 

Pros / positives of the Budget Improvement Plan 

o I understand that Strategic Budgeting have engaged across the whole of Welsh Treasury and tried to engage 
a number of teams in discussion.  

o It is relatively broad, encompassing in-year spending decisions and tax strategy.  
o It recognises progress that has already been made – for example WG was the first Government to do an EIA 

of the budget back in 2011-12. 
 

Cons / weaknesses of the Budget Improvement Plan 

o 5-year timeframe is too short. There is a lack of ambition and vision of what WG should be working towards 
– i.e. what would a budget that fully embeds the WFG Act look like. 

o I have some concerns about the pace and scale of change.  
o It appears that Strategic Budgeting are driving a lot of the work when it needs to be a cross-Government 

approach (can add more detail if needed).  
 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 45



How can progress be made on improving procurement processes so they better align with the Act? What 
discussion have you had with the Welsh Government and other public bodies on this matter? 

I am carrying out some research on this issue in partnership with Cardiff University and I am scoping a potential 
review on the topic. As part of my research I have written to the Chief Executives of all the 44 Public Bodies to ask 
them for information on how they are currently applying the Act to their commissioning and procurement 
decisions. I’ve had discussions with Welsh Government Ministers and officials about my work.  I am intending to 
publish my findings from this research next year. 

Tudalen y pecyn 46



By email. 

13th August 2019 

Dear Julie, 

Thank you for your letter in June 2019 on the review of strategic partnerships. I am aware that 
the initial call for evidence has now closed and your officials are moving into a time of more 
targeted engagement, building on your initial findings. Therefore, I am taking this opportunity to 
provide you with some further thoughts. I would be happy to discuss these in more detail and I 
am aware that members of my team are meeting your lead officials during August.  

In recent weeks, I have had a number of conversations relating to the partnership landscape in 
Wales and the observations made are on the similar themes of complexity, flexibility and funding 
being allocated in a way that drives 'business as usual'.  

I am pleased to read that the scope of this strategic partnership review includes many of the 
related pieces of work examining the partnership landscape in Wales. These are named in the 
documentation as:  

• "The OECD Multi-Level Governance Review, which has been commissioned to inform the
implementation of the ‘Economic Action Plan’ as part of ‘Prosperity for All’ and the
development of the replacement regional investment approach to replace EU Structural Funds
post-Brexit.
• Independent Review of the Regional Skills Partnerships.
• WAO local government study on Public Services Boards and the effectiveness of
partnership working.
• Joint inspectorate work on the progress of new local models of health and social care, and
the effectiveness of Regional Partnership Board joint working."

In addition to these reviews: 
• I have recently received the Joint Ministerial letter and independent report by Professor
Keith Moultrie regarding how Public Services Boards (PSBs) and Regional Partnership Boards
(RPBs) are working together in practice;
• the Equality, Local Government and Communities Committee are due to report on their
inquiry into PSBs during October;
• I have recently heard about pilots or proposed pilots with PSBs linked to Government, such
as CLES seeking to work with several PSBs on progressive procurement and local spend;

Tudalen y pecyn 47



• I believe that Professor Phil Brown's work on the Digital Innovation Review suggests
changes to Regional Skills Partnerships (RSPs); and
• there are many others undertaking analysis of partnership working in Wales, such as those
in academia. Some of whom are sponsored by Welsh Government funding.

I am concerned because it is not clear how this myriad of reviews is joined up. Aside from the 
additional burden the amount of reviews is placing on officers (it is often the same person 
responsible for several 'strategic partnerships'), it is unlikely to present a clear and coherent 
picture across the board of what needs to change, in line with the integration requirements of the 
WFG Act.. Whilst I appreciate that understanding how partnerships are currently operating is 
important to enable change, it is imperative that these reviews are integrated by officials and the 
'strategic partnership review' would appear an appropriate way to do this swiftly.   

Whilst reviews to understand context and make recommendations for ways to improve are 
generally helpful (if, as referenced above, they are conducted in an integrated way) there are 
some immediate actions that it would be helpful for Government to take that would enable pace 
and progress to be made in applying the Well-being of Future Generations Act. As an example, 
the evidence I hear most often on this is in relation to the role of Regional Partnership Boards 
(RPBs) and Public Services Boards (PSBs).  

I am aware that there is confusion - from local level to Assembly Member level - about the role of 
these two partnerships; how the Boards function and how they integrate their duties. Despite 
some good work happening locally, I have written to you in the past to share my view that it would 
be very helpful for Government to clarify the situation by encouraging flexibility for both Boards 
and collaboration to happen in the best, locally-determined ways.  

Many of the conversations I have had relate to an opinion that Welsh Government are allocating 
funding in a way that undermines the role of PSBs in their duties to improve collective well-being. 
Continually allocating funding to RPBs, without explicit links to prevention and the work of the 
PSB has caused, and continues to cause, a lack of integration, collaboration and missed 
opportunities to invest in prevention and the wider determinants of health.   

The World Health Organisation have recently shown that, of the average inequalities of health 
experienced in Europe, only 10% is due to the quality of health services. The majority (29%) is 
due to living conditions like housing and access to green spaces. A further 19% is due to feelings 
of agency, lack of trust, community cohesion and safety. These wider determinants of health are 
the focus of the PSBs, where wider agencies are present who can affect change. Yet the 
perception is the RPBs are being funded to focus on health and social care services to 'improve 
health' and the PSBs are merely being funded much smaller amounts to improve their processes.  

Tudalen y pecyn 48



 

 

The expectation on PSBs is to work together radically differently to collectively improve population 
well-being for the areas they serve. Although many PSB members agree with this notion, their 
perception is also that the only incentives that they have had to do so have been the statutory 
guidance for the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act and the small amount of annual 
funding they receive on a regional footprint. It is unsurprising, therefore, that many Leaders, Chief 
Executives and Directors focus more of their attention on RPBs and City / Growth Deal 
Partnerships.   
Through my specific statutory duties relating to well-being assessments and advising PSBs on 
draft objectives and my general advice and assistance power, I have attempted to show PSBs 
what good could look like. I am currently working intensively with the Cwm Taf PSB through a 
‘Live Lab’ approach, focused on how they are meeting their objectives relating to adverse 
childhood experiences. Due to my resources, I cannot provide intensive support for every PSB or 
strategic partnership. It is worth noting that I am seeing promising initiatives through their 
annual reporting but I believe the progress and pace can be accelerated by Government providing 
clarity and reward.  
  
If more funding cannot be allocated to PSBs, then it would be useful for Government to use the 
opportunity of these reviews to consider and address how funding is allocated and communicated, 
actively providing PSBs and other local partnerships with more flexibility in how they do things. I 
agree with Professor Moultrie's findings (in this case on how PSBs and RPBs are working 
together) that:   
"it would be helpful if national funding arrangements could be further consolidated so that regional 
and local Boards are dealing with fewer grants, over longer periods of time, with combined wider 
priorities attached...Participants were clear that the attention locally and regionally needed to shift 
to how partners are transforming the major elements of services to meet needs more effectively 
and efficiently, and that Welsh Government oversight should also focus more on this than on 
detailed monitoring of relatively small -scale additional grants." (July 2019)  
  
To enable this to happen, as well as Government considering how they allocate funding, it would 
be helpful if you provided a clear steer to PSB members that PSBs are able to accept funding, 
provided one partner holds the funds.   
  
At the recent inaugural meeting of the 'Building a Healthier Wales' steering group, I advocated 
that the £10m prevention fund was awarded to PSBs rather than to Health Boards, which had 
been previously agreed. It was discussed that, unlike RPBs, PSBs are unable to hold funds - but 
it seems a partner can hold funds on behalf of decisions made at PSB on how to spend the 
funding.   
  
Providing this clarity and encouraging the legislation to be realised through partnership working 
provides an opportunity for Government. Given the PSBs' wider remit across all political areas 

Tudalen y pecyn 49



 

 

and specifically, in the priority themes of 'Prosperity for All', Welsh Government could be using 
them far more extensively by adequately funding them to deliver the aspirations of the Well-
being of Future Generations Act.  
  
Whilst Government has a key role to affect change, I appreciate that locally, leaders must also 
change their behaviours to recognise the opportunities of using funding more effectively to 
collaborate and prevent problems. The upcoming Academi Wales Public Services' Summit in 
October will attract the leaders and senior officers from across the public sector in Wales - many 
of them members of several strategic partnerships. I suggest this is an opportunity for Ministers 
to reinforce the culture change required by the Well-being of Future Generations Act.   
  
The strategic partnership review provides Government with a helpful opportunity to clarify the 
role and flexibilities of local collaboration and funding allocation in Wales, provided it is 
integrated and shares common messaging with other reviews. I will also share this letter with 
the Auditor General for Wales, given the related study Wales Audit Office have been 
undertaking.   
  
 
Yours Sincerely, 
 

 
 
 
Sophie Howe 

Tudalen y pecyn 50


	Agenda
	2 Bil Llywodraeth Leol ac Etholiadau (Cymru): sesiwn dystiolaeth 2
	3 Bil Llywodraeth Leol ac Etholiadau (Cymru): sesiwn dystiolaeth 3
	4 Bil Llywodraeth Leol ac Etholiadau (Cymru): sesiwn dystiolaeth 4
	Consultation on the Local Government & Elections (Wales) Bill
	Performance assessment arrangements: performance requirements
	Self-assessments
	Panel assessments
	Special inspections
	Co-ordination between regulators
	General power of competence
	Corporate Joint Committees
	cc: Mr Llyr Gruffydd AM, Chair, Finance Committee



	6 Papurau i'w nodi
	6.1 Gohebiaeth gan y Llywydd ynghylch amserlen y Bil Llywodraeth Leol ac Etholiadau (Cymru) – 4 Rhagfyr 2019
	6.2 Gohebiaeth at y Gweinidog Tai a Llywodraeth Leol ynghylch y sesiwn graffu ddiweddar ar y Bil Llywodraeth Leol ac Etholiadau (Cymru) - 5 Rhagfyr 2019
	6.3 Gohebiaeth gan y Gweinidog Tai a Llywodraeth Leol ynghylch yr ymgynghoriad ar newidiadau i drefniadau llywodraethu gweithredol mewn prif gynghorau – 5 Rhagfyr 2019
	6.4 Gohebiaeth gan Grŵp Gweithredu Celestia ynghylch materion diogelwch tân yn natblygiad Celestia – 5 Rhagfyr 2019
	6.5 Gohebiaeth gan y Dirprwy Weinidog Tai a Llywodraeth Leol ynghylch yr ymateb i adroddiad y Pwyllgor ar fudd-daliadau yng Nghymru – 5 Rhagfyr
	191205 Hannah Blythyn to Chair re benefits report response (c).pdf
	Welsh Gov response (c).pdf

	6.6 Gohebiaeth gan Gomisiynydd Cenedlaethau’r Dyfodol ynghylch gwybodaeth ychwanegol yn dilyn y cyfarfod ar 7 Tachwedd – 6 Rhagfyr 2017
	191206 FGC to Chair re additional info response (e).pdf
	191206 FGC to Julie James re strategic partnerships (e) (13 Aug 2019).pdf




